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Corporate Information

NAE|ER

Executive Director

CHENG Hairong (Chairman)

Non-Executive Director

LAU Tom Ko Yuen (Deputy Chairman)
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FENG Nien Shu
LUI Siu Tsuen, Richard
WONG Lai Kin, Elsa
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LUI Siu Tsuen, Richard (Chairman)
FENG Nien Shu
WONG Lai Kin, Elsa
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LAU Tom Ko Yuen
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Corporate Information (continued)

A E &R (E])
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Dear Shareholders,

2011 is a year of volatile. As highlighted in our interim report, the lack of
optimism in the global economy extended to the second half of 2011.
The instability of the world political and economic environment caused
the stock market fluctuated significantly in 2011. With the mentioned
instability, the fortune is that China managed to maintain relatively stable
growth in its economy. This provides confidence and opportunities for our
continuous investment in this treasure land.

In this year, we have increased our investment in China by investing in the
China consumer sector and mining business. This provides opportunity for
the Group to participate in the high growth potential businesses.

The subsidiary of GCA Professional Services Group Limited, one of our
investments, was listed in GEM Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
The value of this investment was increased from HK$5 million to
approximately HK$10.6 million, an appreciation of approximately HK$5
million. In addition, we have disposed 70% of a money lending company
to an independent third party with a gain of approximately HK$1 million.
Although there were impairments made in certain investments and the
securities trading was running at loss, 2011 is considered a fruitful year
for the Group.

In 2012, we will continue our focus on the investment in China and
capture the growth therein.

At last but not the least, | would like to express my warmest thanks to
your support in 2011 and in the future.

Cheng Hairong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2012
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Operation Review

During the year 2011, the Group continued its investment activities in
both listed and unlisted investments and other related financial assets.
The major investment activities during the year 2011 were as follows:

Disposal of Glorious Bright Limited

On 27 October 2011, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with an independent third party on the disposal of 70%
equity interest of Glorious Bright Limited (“Glorious Bright”) at a
consideration of HK$10,000,000 (please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 30 November 2011 for the details of the disposal). The
disposal was completed on 30 December 2011. The Group held 30%
equity interest in Glorious Bright after the disposal and Glorious Bright
became an associate company of the Group. The gain on disposal of
Glorious Bright is set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Capital appreciation of GCA Professional Services
Group Limited

The Group acquired 20% equity interest in GCA Professional Services
Group Limited (“GCA Professional”) in the year 2010 at a consideration
of HK$5,000,000. GreaterChina Professional Services Limited
("GreaterChina”), one of the subsidiaries of GCA Professional, was listed
on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 31
May 2011. The fair value of GCA Professional as at 31 December 2011
was approximately HK$10,602,000 which represents an appreciation of
approximately HK$5,602,000 in the investment.

Investment in CBA Sports International Limited

On 19 May 2011, Easy Best Holdings Limited, an associate company of
the Group, has partnered with Shenzhen Capital Group Co., Limited to
co-invest in CBA Sports International Limited (“CBA"). Total investment
cost and loan to Easy Best for the CBA investment was US$750,000
(approximately HK$5,856,000).

CBA held the licensed trademark and brand name of Chinese Basketball
Association and is principally engaged in designing, manufacturing,
distributing and promoting of sportswear products in China market with
the CBA brand. Currently they have 13 production lines in China for
shoes production and their clothes and accessories manufacturing are
mainly outsourced to OEM manufacturers.

& E O B

R20MF  NEBEEETHN ETWMIE
FRENEMEBEY B EECIREE
o201 FZ2EEREFTEWT :

HETHFR/RLA

R201ME10A27H A&E B #H — H B
E=ZHIVEERE UWEHETEER
REITTED Z70%B A#Ez RE A
10,000,000/ L (BB HE 2 FIBEL2H A
AREIBEA2011FE1MA30RZEBE) - HE
EIHMN201TE12A0ERK - L EE K
EEFETHEZ30%/AEZ - m T 78I
KAEREBRBER A HETHRZKE
HONRERE IR MI5E28

RZEEXBRBEBRERAAZE
RIBE

REBR20M0FREZESEREERS
RARI(NDEERE]) 220% B AEm - KE
75,000,000 T c EEE K E A — MK
BARZEZERBEARARI(NEE]D R
Q0MEFESANBETEBERSMABRA
BIBIZEIR =7 o )R EH ZE R 201112 A 31
B2 A F{E# 510,602,000 7T B K IE
T8 % & $41{E 495,602,000 7T °

A CBA Sports International
Limited 2 8 &

X HE

M2011 58198 A& B 2 B 2 2 7
Easy Best Holdings Limited £2 & 3l T & %71 1%
BEEEBEABRRAAF ERAEE RCBASports
International Limited ([CBA]) = B BACBAIR &
4 ¥ & BN K 1A Easy Best 2 & X A& 750,000
% 7t (495,856,000 7T)

CBARF B 7 Bl & 2R 10p & 2 5F 7] P9 1% I fm h&
EZH - EERTBETISUACBAMBKREEESD
MEEmMZRT ®E DHEKER BA
ETBEBEBBRERERLESR HERE
RECHHBGET I A T H MBI R EUER -

& BEREEBARAT 2011 FH

05



Management Discussion (continued)
EEE Wl ()

Acquisition of Rakarta Limited

On 20 October 2011, the Group completed the acquisition of 8% equity
interest in Rakarta Limited (“Rakarta”) at a consideration of
HK$53,000,000.

Rakarta indirectly held 54% equity interest in a PRC company which owns
a lead and zinc mine in China. The mine is applying for mining licence as
at 31 December 2011.

Financial Review

Results for the Year

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 was
approximately HK$41,066,000, a reduction of HK$15,520,000 from loss
of HK$56,586,000 in last financial year. The reduction in loss was mainly
because there was no payment of legal claims (details are set out in note
9 to the consolidated financial statements) in this year (2010: legal claims
amounted to approximately HK$17,827,000).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$21,815,000 (2010: approximately HK$78,829,000).
The Group had no bank borrowing as at 31 December 2011 (2010: nil).

Outlook

Looking forward, the recovery of US market is still a mystery, Europe is
still under the threat of credit crisis, the global market is expected to be
volatile in the year 2012. Although China would also be affected by the
volatile global market, it still maintains significant level of export and
internal consumptions. The Group will continue its focus on exploring
investment opportunities in China.

Other Information

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio (total liabilities/total assets) at the end of the year 2011
was 0.55% (2010: 2.27%).
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Management Discussion (continued)
EEE Wl (&)

Charges on assets

Charges on assets of the Group are set out in note 17(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Litigation

No outstanding litigation as at 31 December 2011 was noted.

Contingent liabilities

There are no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2011.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

During the year 2011, the investments of the Group were mainly
denominated in HK$ and US$. Since HK$ are pegged to US$, significant
exposure is not expected in US$ transactions and balances.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s largest and five largest customers accounted for
approximately 33% and 92 % respectively of the Group’s revenue.

An executive director of the Company together with his associates held
below 5% interest in one of the five largest customers as at 31 December
2011.

A non-executive director of the Company together with his associates
held below 5% interest in one of the five largest customers as at 31
December 2011. The non-executive director of the Company is currently
the chairman and managing director of that customer.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has 12 employees (including
directors of the Company). Remuneration policies for the employees and
the directors are reviewed by the Group in accordance with the market
situation and their performance from time to time. No director or
executive is involved in dealing his own remuneration. In addition to
salary payments, the Company has participated in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme
is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Pursuant to the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the Group and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of their monthly relevant income.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Principal Activities
The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its

principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 28.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Share Capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Plant and Equipment

Details of movements during the year in plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (H&)

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Director

Mr. CHENG Hairong (Chairman)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. LAU Tom Ko Yuen (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. FENG Nien Shu
Mr. LUI Siu Tsuen, Richard
Ms. WONG Lai Kin, Elsa

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr. Feng Nien Shu and Ms.
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical Details of Directors
The biographical details of the directors of the Company are as follows:

Executive Director

Mr. Cheng Hairong, aged 52, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company in 2010. He is also the chairman of the Company and
director of the subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 20 years of
experience as an executive director and consultant in establishing and
managing listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheng has extensive
knowledge in China finance and investments in life sciences, biotech,
energy saving, tourism, trading and finance service sectors. Mr. Cheng
was the vice chairman and executive director of EPI (Holdings) Limited
and the chairman and executive director of China Boon Holdings Limited
(formerly known as “Vision Tech International Holdings Limited”). Both
companies are listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEERE (#

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen, aged 60, was appointed as a non-executive
director and subsequently re-designated as an executive director and
appointed as the chairman of the Company in 2009. In 2010, he was re-
designated as a non-executive director and deputy chairman of the
Company. He is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and
director of the subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 37 years of
international experience in investment, corporate development and
management in infrastructure developments as well as construction and
engineering services involving road, rail, port, power, telecommunications,
mining and resources sectors in the Asia Pacific Region. Mr. Lau is
currently the chairman and managing director of PYI Corporation Limited
(498.HK) and the deputy chairman and non-executive director of Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited (577.HK), shares of all two companies are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Feng Nien Shu, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2009. He is a member of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company and an
independent non-executive director of a subsidiary of the Company. He
holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of
Windsor in Canada and a Bachelor of Arts degree from the York
University in Canada. He is currently the managing partner and chief
investment officer of Sapientia Capital, a private equity investment
manager and advisory based in Shanghai, China. He has over 20 years of
experience in investment, merger and acquisition in China and South East
Asia.

Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard, aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 2009. He is the chairman of
the audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company. He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from
the University of Adelaide in Australia. He is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants in the United Kingdom, and is a practicing Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Lui has over 30 years of experience in
accounting, financial and corporate management and has held senior
financial and management positions in an international accounting firm
and various private and public listed companies. Mr. Lui is currently an
independent non-executive director of 21 Holdings Limited and an
executive director of eSun Holdings Limited, Lai Sun Garment
(International) Limited, Lai Sun Development Company Limited, Lai Fung
Holdings Limited and MediaAsia Group Holdings Limited. The shares of all
the six companies are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (H&)

Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa, aged 46, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 2009. She is a member of the
audit committee of the Company. She holds a Bachelor’s and Master's
degree in Law from The University of Hong Kong, as well as a Master’s
degree in Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Ms. Wong is a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong and Supreme
Court of England and Wales, a member of the Hong Kong Law Society
and Hong Kong Society for Financial Analysts. She also holds the
Chartered Financial Analyst designation. Ms. Wong has over 20 years of
experience in legal profession, with majority years working as corporate
counsel and company secretary of Hong Kong listed companies.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEERE (#

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the directors
and any of their associates in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of HK$0.025 each of
the Company
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Percentage of
issued share

Personal’ Family* Corporate” Total capital of the

Interests Interests Interests Interests Company

A QT
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Name of Director EEnR BAREzR RikER" nEER" mER Bk

Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2= R — 266,890,840 266,890,840 266,890,840 37.46%
(Note)
GoF=9)

Cheng Hairong B 8 &8 9,370,000 — 266,890,840 276,260,840 38.77%
(Note)
(Bt at)

* Beneficial owner
* Interests of spouse

Interests beneficially held by the company itself or through companies
controlled by it

Note:

266,890,840 shares were held by Favor Hero Investments Limited, a company
controlled as to 51% by Sun Matrix Limited and as to 49% by Glory Avenue
Limited. Sun Matrix Limited was controlled as to 50% by Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen and
50% by Ms. Lan Yi, the spouse of Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen. Glory Avenue Limited was
wholly controlled by Mr. Cheng Hairong.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (H&)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the directors
nor their associates of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
that required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding company,
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2011, the following persons had interests and short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares of HK$0.025 each of
the Company

FERR

BARNBRIEE S K HEIKH 533615 %
T ZERMATRS - T ALTR2011F12
A31EHR ARG 2O RBEBRHDT#ES

W RAR
7R 7 8 B HE {50.0257% T 2
B zirm

Percentage of
issued share

Personal’ Family* Corporate” Total capital of the

Interests Interests Interests Interests Company

LER VA

ERTRE

Name of Shareholders B X &7 BARER" RikER" DEERE BER ZEDL

Favor Hero Favor Hero — — 266,890,840 266,890,840 37.46%
Investments Limited Investments (Note)
Limited K

Sun Matrix Limited Sun Matrix — — 266,890,840 266,890,840 37.46%
Limited (Note)
(K1 &t)

Lau Tom Ko Yuen =R — 266,890,840 266,890,840 266,890,840 37.46%
Note,
o

Lan Vi B — — 266,890,840 266,890,840 266,890,840 37.46%
W)

Glory Avenue Limited Glory Avenue — — 266,890,840 266,890,840 37.46%
Limited (Note)
(Bt 3%)

Cheng Hairong X g 28 9,370,000 — 266,890,840 276,260,840 38.77%
W)

Fong Ngai Frank 77 3% 59,380,000 — — 59,380,000 8.33%

* Beneficial owner

+

Interests of spouse

# Interests beneficially held by the company itself or through companies

controlled by it
Note:

Favor Hero Investments Limited was controlled as to 51% by Sun Matrix Limited
and as to 49% by Glory Avenue Limited. Sun Matrix Limited was controlled as to
50% by Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen and 50% by Ms. Lan Yi, the spouse of Mr. Lau Tom
Ko Yuen. Glory Avenue Limited was wholly controlled by Mr. Cheng Hairong.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the directors were not
aware of any other person who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
that required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO and/or were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of the share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other members of the Group.
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Confirmation of Independence of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors are independent.

Connected Transactions

New Investment Management Agreement

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 6
September 2007 in respect of the Investment Management Agreement
("IM Agreement”) which expired on 31 August 2010. In view of the
uncertain economic environment at the relevant time, on 31 August 2008
the Company and Greater China Capital Limited (“GC Capital”, formerly
known as “Sinox Fund Management Limited”) agreed to amend the
management fee payable to GC Capital by the Company from 1.9% per
annum of the consolidated net asset value of the Company to a fixed
amount of HK$250,000 per month.

On 16 December 2010, the Company entered into the New Investment
Management Agreement (“New IM Agreement”) with GC Capital for the
appointment of GC Capital as the Company’s investment manager for a
further term of three years commencing from 1 September 2010 to 31
August 2013.

The principal terms of the New IM Agreement are substantially the same
as the IM Agreement except that the management fee payable to GC
Capital by the Company has been revised to a fixed amount of
HK$300,000 per month (exclusive of disbursements) and that, in addition
to such monthly fee, GC Capital is also entitled to a discretionary bonus
in such amount as the Company may at its discretion determine provided
that the audited consolidated net asset value of the Group as at the end
of a financial year exceeds that in the previous financial year and the total
management fee for such financial year is less than 1.9% of the audited
consolidated net asset value of the Group. However, the aggregate
amount of such discretionary bonus (if any) and the annual management
fee shall not in any event exceed 1.9% of the audited consolidated net
asset value of the Group as at the end of such financial year. In the event
that the total management fee for a financial year exceeds 1.9% of the
audited consolidated net asset value of the Group at the end of that
financial year, there will be no discretionary bonus for GC Capital for that
financial year.
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MAIEIBGRAEB L EHL 2 FERER
E-ARARARERBIUFNTEEAR
B AL -

FERXS

MREEEH R

2 IR M AR R A 20079 A6 H Tl # 2
EHREEERR((REEERZ) Z2A
e EEEHEC RN2010488318 &
oo S E R ACEIRIE T BAER - 1A 20084F 8
A31B AArBEZEEEARAGR AR (E
EEKR] AIBIMRESEREGRAA]DH
EBARGENTEEEACEEBHRHE
FARRRKRAEEFBEZI19%ET AE
F 4 ES A 250,000 7T °

R2010F 12 5160 » AR A aA] B2 FE & ARt
ZEREEEARARBARAZIRERLEME] L
SHREEEBER(HKREER ] B
2010FO A1 H# £2013F 8 A31H I # —
SRR =F ZHR -

FREEEHBE 2T ERRRBR LEIEE
ERMHEMAR MAQREMNTEEER
2 EBBEEF AREESES H300,000%
T(ThEERNTE) EBREBEBARAEBI Z
EEANBRUDMAQARAJERNBEETZ
EREE B EREERE —§
BREERIKEEREKGEEFEEBRB L
—UBEFEE RZVBRFEC2ERBLR
HAEAIRASB VEEZEAEEFEY
19% A ZWBHEA(WE) RFER
B BSHERNEMBATH I EBABALRE
ERBEMBRFEFERIEERRGEEF
BEZ219% ME—HHRFE2EEBHEE
BRAEERZYBFERZKEEZEE
BEFEZ19% BIEEEXRZM BT
ERTZEMIBIEAL -

& BEREBBERAT 2011 £ 5§

15



16

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEERE (#

The Board believes that the Company can benefit from the valuable
investment and management experience of GC Capital whom is able to
identify and pursue investment opportunities and provide advice to the
existing investments of the Company to achieve capital appreciation and
growth of the Group.

The Board (including the independent non-executive directors) considers
that the terms of the New IM Agreement including the management fee
payable by the Group under the New IM Agreement are on normal
commercial terms, fair and reasonable and the entering of the New IM
Agreement is in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole. Aside from the fact that the Company is interested in 20%
shareholding in GCA Professional Services Group Limited (“GCA
Professional”, formerly known as “G C Associates Limited”), none of the
directors have a material interest in the New IM Agreement and therefore
no director is required to abstain from voting on the relevant Board
resolution approving the New IM Agreement.

Information on GC Capital

GC Capital is a corporation licensed to carry out Type 4 (advising on
securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). It was incorporated
on 30 June 1992 and it specialises in investment and fund management
mainly in Hong Kong. GC Capital has served as an investment manager
of the Company since 12 December 1992. Being the investment manager
of the Company, GC Capital is a connected person under Rule 21.13 of
the Listing Rules.

Corporate Services Agreement

On 28 January 2010, Prosperity Management Services Limited (“Prosperity
Management”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the Corporate Services Agreement (“CS Agreement”) with Greater China
Corporate Consultancy & Services Limited ("GC Corporate Services”) for
a term of 3 years commencing from 29 January 2010 for the engagement
of GC Corporate Services to provide general back-office administration
service to the Group, including the provision of company secretarial,
accounting and bookkeeping services, and to provide a qualified company
secretary and authorized representative as well as a service process agent
in Hong Kong to the Group, at the monthly fee of HK$80,000 (exclusive
of disbursements).

The Board (including the independent non-executive directors) would like
to confirm that the terms of the CS Agreement were determined after
arm’s length negotiations between the parties taking into account the
services offered by GC Corporate Services and the costs incurred by the
Group relating to such services before the entering into of the CS
Agreement.
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Information on GC Corporate Services

GC Corporate Services is principally engaged in provision of corporate
services including accounting, corporate secretarial and office
administration services. As at the date of signing of the CS Agreement,
GC Corporate Services was not a connected person of the Company. As a
result of the acquisition by GCA Professional of GC Capital in May 2010,
GC Corporate Services, being a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of GCA
Professional which also wholly owns GC Capital, became a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the CS Agreement became a
continuing connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

License Agreement

On 16 December 2010, Prosperity Management (as licensee) and Linkson
Investment Limited (“Linkson Investment”) (as licensor) entered into the
License Agreement, pursuant to which Linkson Investment granted a
license to Prosperity Management for the use of the Premises for a term
of 3 years commencing from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012 at the
following license fee:

Period covered

gz A

ERZEEZEPZEREZ EH
BEEMERBFEIENERHVOERS (213
S RAMERBAIZTITHRE) - RE
A ERBHEES EECERBIIE
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aF T 175

R2010F 128168 REE R ((EAER ]
F)EERFEERAG([EHEE]) (E
BN AT HE Bl EHRIRE
BETIHFAEBRAZEEERTERZDE
ZFFR - B2010F1 A1 BB E20129F12A
31HIEAB=%F:

HK$
BT

1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010
20101 H1 B ZE20105612 A31H

1 January 2011 to 31 December 2011
200111 A1HZE20119F12A31H

1 January 2012 to 31 December 2012
2012F1 A1 HZE20125612A31H

In addition, Prosperity Management shall during the license period share
and pay to Linkson Investment the management fee of HK$12,820 per
month plus portion of the government rents and rates payable by Linkson
Investment to the landlord.

Reasons for entering into the License Agreement

The Premises are used as the Group’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The Board (including the independent non-executive directors)
considers that the terms of the License Agreement including the
consideration payable under the License Agreement are on normal
commercial terms, fair and reasonable and the entering of the License
Agreement is in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole. Aside from the fact that the Company is interested in 20%
shareholding in GCA Professional, none of the directors have a material
interest in the License Agreement and therefore no director is required to
abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution approving the
License Agreement.
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The Board (including independent non-executive directors) would like to
confirm that the terms of the License Agreement were determined after
arm’s length negotiations between the parties taking into account that
the license fee and management fee payable by Prosperity Management
are based on proportion of floor area of the Premises bears on the
premises leased by Linkson Investment of which the Premises formed a
part and the market rent of similar premises at the relevant time.

Information on Linkson Investment

Linkson Investment is principally engaged in leasing administration.

The Board (including independent non-executive directors) would like to
confirm that the New Investment Management Agreement, Corporate
Services Agreement and License Agreement have been entered into by
the Group are in the ordinary course of business, on normal commercial
terms, and such transactions are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board has also confirmed that a letter pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) has been issued to the Board by the
auditor of the Company.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares of
the Company

During the year, the Company repurchased the shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange, all of which shares were cancelled. Particulars of the
shares repurchased are as follows:

Number of shares of
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HK$0.025 each Aggregate
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A
Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries B E X BEEH I - KA G R EEMKE AR
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the FAIRFABMEEE HEXBEEB AR FFE

year. AR {7 ©
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws, or the Company Act (1981) of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and

within the knowledge of its directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

Messrs. H.H. Liu & Co., Certified Public Accountants, resigned and
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as auditor of the
Company in the year 2010.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to

re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cheng Hairong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 March 2012
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The Group is dedicated to maintaining a good credible framework of
corporate governance with a view to being transparent, open and
accountable to our shareholders.

The Company adopted all the code provisions in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules as its own code on corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company has complied
with the code provisions in the Code except for the following deviation:

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company does not at present have chief executive officer
and is in the process of identifying suitable candidate to fill the casual
vacancy of chief executive officer.

The Board

Composition

The Board currently consists of one executive director, one non-executive
director and three independent non-executive directors (“INED(s)”), one
of whom namely Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard has the appropriate
professional accounting experience and expertise. The names and
biographical details of each director are disclosed on pages 9 to 11 of this
annual report.

Each INED has, pursuant to the rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, confirmed
he/she is independent of the Company and the Company also considers
that they are independent. The current term of office of non-executive
directors is for a period of two years until 20 December 2013 subject to
the requirement that one-third of all the directors shall retire from office
by rotation at each annual general meeting pursuant to the Bye-Laws of
the Company. There is no relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship) among members of the Board.
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Function

The Board is responsible both for how the Company is managed and the
Company’s direction. Approval of the Board is required for the strategy of
the Group, major acquisition and disposal, major capital investment,
dividend policy, appointment and retirement of directors, remuneration
policy and other major operational and financial matters. Day-to-day
operations of the Group are taken up by the Company’s management
and the Company’s investment manager.

The Board has established schedule of matters specifically reserved to the
Board for its decision and those reserved for the management. The Board
reviews this schedule on a periodic basis to ensure that it remains
appropriate to the needs of the Company.

The Board held four regular board meetings at approximately quarterly
interval during the year 2011. Additional board meetings were held when
necessary. Due notice and board papers were given to all directors prior
to the meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Code. Details
of individual attendance of directors are set out in the table below:

Attendance of individual directors at board meetings in
2011

Number of meetings B2 ¥"A
Executive Directors HITES
Cheng Hairong (Chairman) BB (EE)
Non-Executive Director EHITES

Lau Tom Ko Yuen (Deputy Chairman) BeR(BEE)

INEDs BYFHTES
Feng Nien Shu LSt
Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard =K R
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa =EE

The Board has established procedure to enable directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.
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Board Committees

To strengthen the functions of the Board and to enhance its expertise,
there are two board committees namely, the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee formed under the Board, with each performing
different functions.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs.
The role and function of the Audit Committee include:

—  toserve as a focal point for communication between other Directors
and the auditor in respect of the duties relating to financial and
other reporting, internal controls, audits, and such other matters as
the Board may determine from time to time.

—  to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibility by providing an
independent review and supervision of financial reporting, by
satisfying themselves as to the effectiveness of the internal controls

of the Group and the adequacy of the audits.

—  to review the appointment of auditor on an annual basis including
the review of the audit scope and approval of the audit fees.

—  to review the annual and interim financial statements prior to their
approval by the Board, and recommend application of accounting

policies and changes to the financial reporting requirements.

— to ensure continuing auditor objectivity and to safeguard
independence of the Company’s auditor.

Set out below is the summary of work done in 2011:

—  to review the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2010 and for the six months ended 30 June 2011; and

—  toreview the auditor’s audit plan and the letters of representation.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year. Details of
individual attendance of its members are set out in the table below:

Attendance of individual members at Audit Committee
meetings in 2011

Number of meetings SEHE

INEDs BYFHTES
Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard (Chairman of the Committee) akR(ZEg
Feng Nien Shu Lt

Wong Lai Kin, Elsa =EBE

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, comprising two
INEDs and the Deputy Chairman of the Company appointed by the Board,
which meets at least once a year. The role and function of the
Remuneration Committee include formulation of the remuneration policy,
review and recommending to the Board the annual remuneration policy,
and determination of the remuneration of the Executive Directors. The
directors are remunerated with reference to their respective duties and
responsibility with the Company, the Company’s performance and current
market situation.

Set out below is the summary of work of the Remuneration Committee
done in 2011:

—  to review of the remuneration policy; and

—  to review of the remuneration of the Executive Directors and the
INEDs.

Details of directors’ emoluments of the Group for the year are as disclosed
in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during 2011. Details of
individual attendance of its members are set out in the table below:

Attendance of individual members at Remuneration
Committee meeting in 2011

Number of meetings S2%E
Non-Executive Director FHITES

Lau Tom Ko Yuen (Chairman of the Committee) AR (ZEEE
INEDs BIkHITES
Feng Nien Shu LSt

Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard =P 3]

Other information

The Board has not established a nomination committee. In accordance
with the Company’s Bye-Laws, the Board has power from time to time
and at any time to appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The nomination should be taken
into consideration of the nominee’s qualification, ability and potential
contributions to the Company. During the year, the Board considered that
there was no immediate need to make any change in relation to the
Board membership.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or deposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and ensure
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations. The procedures
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material errors,
losses or fraud.

During the year, the Board had reviewed the effectiveness of the system
of internal control of the Group including the internal control policies.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the codes of conduct regarding securities transactions
by directors and by relevant employees. All Directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with
the Model Code throughout the year 2011.
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EERERBE (F)

Auditor's Remuneration

The fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu during the year ended 31 December 2011 for auditing and
non-auditing services is analysed as below:

BEET 2B £

HE20MFNRANBIEFE  SZE8 NI
ZHRIEMAIARRR ZAZERENEE) o B =R
SHMTESN BN BRSO

HK$
BT
Auditing =B 600,000
Non-auditing: FEAZE
Review of interim financial statement for the EEEE201MF6H30B 6@ A 2 170,000
6 months period ended 30 June 2011 FERBF S R R
Review of Indebtedness and working capital sufficiency EHRWBARETEHESEY 70,000
on Major Disposal of subsidiary BEEhkEBEEeREE
Agreed-upon procedures on Preliminary Results HE20MF12A31HEFE 25,000
Announcement for the year ended 31 December 2011 MEEBRMm 2 ERFF
Agreed-upon procedures on Continuing HE2011F12A318LFE 35,000
Connected Transactions for the year ended BEBRERZS
31 December 2011 ZEERRF

Directors’ Responsibility for Preparing the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing the
financial statements. The Statement of the Auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 26.

Shareholder Communication

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they
can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These
include annual general meeting, annual report, various notices,
announcements and circulars. Procedure for voting by poll has been read
out by the chairman at the general meeting.

At the annual general meeting held in 2011, a separate resolution was
proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate issue, including re-
election directors and were voted by poll. The Company appointed the
share registrar of the Company to act as scrutineer of the poll to ensure
that votes cast are properly counted and recorded. The results of the poll
were announced in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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Deloitte.
=Z)

TO THE MEMBERS OF PROSPERITY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prosperity
Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 28 to 99, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2011, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BB ®RE (&)

Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and of
the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
22 March 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EmERER

Forthe yearended 31 December 2011

B 22011F12H31HIEFE
2011 2010
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt &F FEx FAET

Turnover — gross proceeds EXETE—SHRIBELE 6 71,436 89,975
Revenue I@N 6 13,519 12,734
Other income H A A 7 2,929 3,625
Other gains and losses H b Yrzm K B 18 8 (40,605) (40,129)
Legal claims ERERR 9 = (17,827)
Administrative expenses THAX (13,132) (9,904)
Other operating expenses HAb & (3,825) (5,168)
Loss before tax BRI E 1B (41,114) (56,669)
Income tax credit BIRE T ) 10 48 83
Loss for the year, attributable to owners RNATEE ANESG

of the Company RFEEEE 11 (41,066) (56,586)
Other comprehensive income Htt2mUBA
Fair value change of: N EEZH -

— debt component of convertible notes — AR EEEEI D (278) (9,722)

— other available-for-sale investments —Hh A ERE (15,014) (23,348)
Reclassification adjustment upon disposal of A HEERHEERE 7

available-for-sale investments ENOERAE 4,950 24,805
Reclassification adjustment upon redemption 7 & B A #A I§ Z2 4% >~

of convertible notes EMOERAE (2,916) 10,978
Impairment loss recognised in respect of A ERERR

available-for-sale investments B B 17 15,985 11,749
Exchange difference arising on translation of ~ # &GN ¥ F A& 4 2

foreign operation e X =% 223 —
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEEMEEEA 2,950 14,462
Total comprehensive expense for the year, KRNBEE ANBERTE

attributable to owners of the Company *HEAXBEE (38,116) (42,124)
Loss per share BREE 14

— Basic (HK$) —EARXCET) 0.06 0.09
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R

At31December2011
R20114F12A31H

2011 2010
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
et FET FET
Non-current assets IERENEE
Plant and equipment BB &% 15 902 1,159
Interests in associates BN RIfER 16 186 100
Loans to associates Bk RNEIN=E 19 12,095 —
Available-for-sale investments AfEERE 17 181,205 157,821
Loan receivable JiE W B 3R 23 — 7,402
Other asset HEm&EE 20 150 150
194,538 166,632
Current assets MENVEE
Available-for-sale investments AHEERSE 17} 18 — 16,290
Held-for-trading listed equity FIEEE L™
investments g 4% & 21 27,329 60,182
Loan receivable EWE = 23 — 18,000
Loans to associates B NEIN=EA 19 46,557 —
Amounts due from related companies &% 78 & X &) I8 24 343 406
Other receivables HibpE U BRTE 25 8,020 3,117
Tax recoverable AT U [ 7 18 — 1,145
Cash held by securities brokers BEKLEAE RS 7,883 8,482
Bank balances and cash RITHEB AR S 13,932 70,347
104,064 177,969
Current liabilities mEIBE
Other payables and accruals HEmEMNERBENMESEE 26 1,551 7,662
Amount due to an associate JE 5 — eI Bt i R B 3R I8 16 97 97
Taxation payable JE IR — 48
1,648 7,807
Net current assets MEEEFEAE 102,416 170,162
Net assets BEFE 296,954 336,794
Capital and reserves BARRFERE
Share capital % 2 27 17,814 17,949
Reserves & 279,140 318,845
Total equity & A 488 296,954 336,794
Net asset value per share (HK$) BREEFEGET) 36 0.42 0.47

FBEFOA AT BRI K20124F
SANBEEESHERKETE  THT
MATHREZRE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 28 to 99 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2012 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Lau Tom Ko Yuen &5 R
DIRECTOR &%

Cheng Hairong f &%
DIRECTOR %

& BERRABERAT 2011 FH 29



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A S L 44
mERmSER

Forthe yearended 31 December 2011

B 22011F12H31HIEFE
Investment
revaluation reserve
RESHGHE
Debt Other
portion of available-
Share Share convertible for-sale  Contributed Translation ~Accumulated Total
capital  premium notes investments surplus reserve losses equity
AR
B2 Hiw
BE ROEE BEEHHD HERE ARG ELRE ZitER  RAEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET TR THT TR FTEL TET TET TR
(note)
(Hiat)
At 1 January 2010 #2010F1 718 12,829 — 1,938 (4,113) 291,670 — (48,820) 253,504
Loss for the year KEEER — — — — — — (56,586) (56,586)
Fair value changes in available-for-sale AHERE Y
investments ATHERY — - (9,722) (23,348) — — - (33,070)
Release upon redemption/disposal of BE/HEAREE
available-for-sale investments REABEE — — 10,978 24,805 — — — 35,783
Impairment loss recognised in respect RAHHERERRL
of available-for-sale investments EREL R — — — 11,749 — — — 11,749
Total comprehensive income (expense) AEEEEKBA
for the year (%)% - — 1,256 13,206 - — (56,586)  (42,124)
Shares issued BETRK 5,120 122,920 - - — - — 128,040
Cost for issue of shares BIRGEAR — (2,626) - — - - — (2,626)
At 31 December 2010 #2010F12 8318 17,949 120,294 3,194 9,093 291,670 - (105,406) 336,794
Loss for the year AFERHE - — — — - — (41,066) (41,066)
Fair value changes in available-for-sale AEEEREZ
investments ATEES — — (278) (15,014) — — — (15,292)
Release upon redemption/disposal of e/ HETELE
available-for-sale investments REB®E — - (2,916) 4,950 — — — 2,034
Impairment loss recognised in A E
respect of available-for-sale REWRZ
investments bERET 2] — — — 15,985 — — — 15,985
Exchange difference arising from BHEBMERES
translation of foreign operation ERER — — — - — 223 — 223
Total comprehensive (expense) income AEE2ERER)
for the year WA BE — — (3,194) 5921 — 223 (41,066) (38,116)
Shares repurchased and cancelled B E R RN (135) — — — (1,589) — — (1,724)
At 31 December 2011 R2011F128318 17,814 120,294 — 15,014 290,081 223 (146,472) 296,954

Note: Contributed surplus of the Group represents:

() the difference between the nominal value of the shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the nominal value of the share capital
and share premium of GR Investment Holdings Limited (“GRIH") at
the time when GRIH was acquired by the Company pursuant to a
group reorganisation completed in 2001, and

(i) the excess of the consideration paid over the nominal value of the
shares repurchased and cancelled in 2011.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

B ZE2011F12A31HIEFE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXR
Loss before tax B T AT 5 18 (41,114) (56,669)
Adjustments for: BUATIEEEHAE:
Interest income FLEMA (589) (3,607)
Depreciation of plantand equipment  HE MEHEITE 319 289
Gain on disposal of plant HEMRE R E
and equipment 2 Was — (13)
Fair value change of conversion AT EES
options embedded HEERE
in convertible notes NFEEH = 174
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHEEREZ
investments &5 18 4,950 24,805
(Gain) loss on redemption of Bk RE 2
convertible notes (W) B518 (2,916) 10,978
Impairment loss recognised in respect  FLA[ B EREHR 2
of available-for-sale investments FBIEEE 26,934 11,749
Fair value change of held-for-trading BEEEREZ
investments NEEED 13,007 (7,577)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 W (1,370) —
Operating cash flows before HEESEHAIZ
movements in working capital KERSME (779) (19,871)
Decrease (increase) in held-for-trading  #{EE & F MR AR E
listed equity investments > (3 n) 19,846 (26,341)
Increase in loan receivable JE U B FR 1 N (25,965) (30,000)
(Increase) decrease in other receivables  E {th f& U BE 78 (3% 40) 5 (5,075) 280
Decrease (increase) in amounts due FE U B iE N B IR R A
from related companies (3 1) 63 (406)
(Decrease) increase in other payables H b FEA BRI G4 ) 1€ 0 (1,112) 2,231
Decrease in amount due to a R —EEER A
related company RIE R D — (250)
Cash used in operations KEFTAES (13,022) (74,357)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEREENEB = (1,059)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded REBFEFNEH 1,145 —
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING RETHAERE
ACTIVITIES R (11,877) (75,416)

BEEREBABERAT 2011 7]
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
GEREREXR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

B Z2011F12A31HIEFE
2011 2010
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HfaE FHET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REEBHZ
ACTIVITIES REeRE
Interest received B F B 334 889
Purchase of available-for-sale equity BE A EERA
investments "E (59,515) (96,353)
Purchase of plant and equipment BEWE & & (62) (1,478)
Proceeds on disposal of plant and Hj’if%& 215
equipment FT18 3T = 43
Proceeds on disposal of HE— F'EJ f‘ﬁ &7 28
a subsidiary FTi5 ;1A (145) —
Proceeds on disposal and redemption  H & R E R At HE & &
of available-for-sale investments Z RS HIAE 21,608 103,062
Loan to an associate m— B E AR ER (5.856) —
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM RETES () B
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ReFH (43,636) 6.163
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMEEEHZ
ACTIVITIES ReRE
Cost for issue of new shares AT IR 19 Bk AN — (2,626)
Proceeds from issue of shares BT TS RUR — 128,040
Payment on repurchase of shares 88 [ IR 1 - 3K (1,724) —
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM BEFE (i) i B
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ReFH (1,724) 125,414
NET (DECREASE) INCREASEINCASH HRE&RZEHRLERB (AY)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3B hn KR (57,237) 56,161
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R1B1BZRER
AT 1 JANUARY ZEESEA 78,829 22,668
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE Ex2H
RATE CHARGE 2 223 —
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MR12A3MBZEER
AT 31 DECEMBER ZERL£HER 21,815 78,829
REPRESENTED BY S
Bank balances and cash RITEHR AR 13,932 70,347
Cash held by securities brokers BHrREFBEzZHE 7,883 8,482
21,815 78,829
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2011
B ZE2011F12A31BILFE

1.

General

Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section “Corporate Information” to the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33.

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs")

New and revised Standards and Interpretations
applied in the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations (“new and
revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights Issues

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum
(Amendments) Funding Requirement
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments

—REHR

EERABRERAR(AAT])
EEREEMATA—MEREAR
NERBOREBRARHHAR
ATBRAM]) L AATZEM
MEEREBE LB Y IR ER
[ABVER] — B B -

HeMBRRABTIBETDINE:
MABTIMBARAZNEER

ARA/—HREZEKRRR] HEX2
MEBARzEEXBEHNME3 -

'\

RNEFRMAZHE RAEBET
EQK R

RAFE AEECEATIIEES
o g((BESFMAE)EMZ
#a] RAEIERT R BF] k2B
IR EAM B RS ELD)

BEAVIB®RE 20106 B BT K

R (BETA) SRR K
BAEGTER BEATEE
F245% (K15 ET)
A GTER Wiz H%E
F325 (BETA)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE2011F12A31HIEFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("H KFRSS") (continued)

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material effect on the amounts reported in these
consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

New and revised Standards and Interpretations
issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets'
Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’
Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures’

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements’
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement”
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of

Other Comprehensive Income®
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets*
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o)

Bt 75 ¥R R BT A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011
B 22011 F12A31HIEFE

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("H KFRSS") (continued)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations
issued but not yet effective (continued)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements®

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures®

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities®
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine”

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
°  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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B Z2011F12H31HIEFE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("H KFRSS") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 increase the disclosure requirements
for transactions involving transfers of financial assets. These
amendments are intended to provide greater transparency around
risk exposures when a financial asset is transferred but the
transferor retains some level of continuing exposure in the asset.
The amendments also require disclosures where transfers of
financial assets are not evenly distributed throughout the period.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKFRS 7 will have a significant effect on the
Group's disclosures regarding transfers of financial assets previously
effected. However, if the Group enters into other types of transfers
of financial assets in the future, disclosures regarding these transfers
may be affected.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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B Z2011F12H31HIEFE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future will have significant impact
on the classification and measurement of the Group’s available-for-
sale investments and may affect the classification and measurement
of the Group’s other financial assets but not on financial liabilities.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial
instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which
other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except in specified
circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13
are more extensive than those in the current standards. For
example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the
three-level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial
instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities
within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 January 2013 and that the application of the new
Standard may affect the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and result in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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B 22011 F12A31HIEFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("H KFRSS") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items

of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in either a single statement
or in two separate but consecutive statements. However, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made
in the other comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a) items
that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b)
items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same

basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the

amendments are applied in the future accounting periods.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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BZE2011F12A31HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3.

2011412 A31 HIFFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises the
assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at
their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (ii)
derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including
any components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as a gain or loss in
profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets of the
subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and the
related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings as specified by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE2011F12A31HIFFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associates. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of an associate recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (ontinued) 3. TEETHR @

Investments in associates (continued)

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in
the Group’ consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s
rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income from a
financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
plant and equipment less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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BZE2011F12A31HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under heading of
translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss. In
addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates that do not result in the Group losing joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3. \E E‘%E‘f JBZ,;':F’:F
Taxation (continued) MIE 2

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interest are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and
deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

HZE2011F12H31HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3. I g%%-l_ JBZ%E
Financial instruments TR

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

BN R AHER -
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The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

BEHETAMDBEREAFENARD
KRB EERIN ZHEBWATIZ
BERF LR EP 2B WAF
AN BB

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL,
of which interest income is included in net gains or losses.
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B Z2011F12A31HIEFZE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3. R
Financial instruments (continued) MBI AR@m
Financial assets (continued) BB EE (&)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFETFTAEBEZERZUBEE
Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading. BAFEBEFANERR 2V BEER
BEEBEBECUBEE -

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value arising from re-measurement recognised directly in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
loans to associates, loans receivable, amounts due from related
companies, other receivables, cash held by securities brokers and
bank balances and cash), are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

BHE2011F12A31HIFFEZE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
the reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE2011F12A31HIFFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period
in which the impairment takes place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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BLZ2011F12A31HIEFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (continveq)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
investment revaluation reserve. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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BIZE2011F12A31HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premium or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including other payables and amount due to an
associate are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated
as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not
closely related to those of the host contracts, and the host contracts
are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.
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3.

20114F12 31 HIFFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make various estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.
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4.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated impairment of available-for-sale
investments

In determining whether there is objective evidence of impairment in
relation to the Group’s available-for-sale investments in listed equity
securities and unlisted equity securities, the Group takes into
consideration of various factors as follows:

For available-for-sale investments in listed equity securities, the
Group considers any significant or prolonged decline in the market
prices or valuation below the respective costs. As at 31 December
2011, the carrying amount of these investments is approximately
HK$97,696,000 (2010: HK$122,011,000). The directors performed
impairment assessment of these investments and an impairment
loss of HK$15,985,000 (2010: HK$11,749,000) was recognised in
profit or loss.

For available-for-sale investments in unlisted equity securities
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses, the Group
considers the current market environment and circumstances.
Impairment would be recognised based on present value of
estimated future cash flows. As at 31 December 2011, the carrying
amount of these unlisted investments was HK$72,907,000 (2010:
HK$35,810,000). The directors performed impairment assessment
of these investments and an impairment loss of HK$10,949,000
(2010: nil) was recognised in profit or loss.

Estimated impairment of loans to associates

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2011, the carrying amount of loan receivable from associates is
approximately HK$58,652,000 (2010: Nil). No allowance for
doubtful debts has been made for both years, since management
has assessed the financial abilities of the associates and is of the
view that the amounts can be recovered in full.

4.

G TREERRZEER

NED
WD (75 )

AHEER

\ﬂ:ﬂ}]l’

Z A EHRE

RNETELRRERBRBEATASEER L
MR AESRIELETRAZ S 27 #
HEREHRBRER  AEEEEN
TZERAX:

?dmﬁmﬂle& S AR ERE

CAREBEZEMENGEERS
Mm%%fﬁ?ﬁﬁ%% BZERERBENUT-
M2011E12A31B WEREZE
M & A& #)97,696,000/8 7T (20104 :
122,011,000 L) - EFE I F &
BHETRENGH TERBERER
8 {& /&5 1815,985,000% JT (2010 4F :
11,749,000 JT) o

MARELTRAZTHF 2 AHEER
E(RFEEREME#HBRERRE)
Me AEEZEERZMHBERER
M BREGFHAARRREREZR
B AT ERBE R20115F12A8
3TH  WERETREZERAEAR
#772,907,0007%8 7t (20104F : 35,810,000
BIL) cEEEHZREHREETRET
fiy » —TE10,949,000% 7T (20104F : &)
ZREBEERBESERERER -

BB E QR ERZ TR
(=]

WHEREBR BB EE  BIASE

g%f‘%iﬁ*%ﬁium§21ﬁﬁ+°jﬁ
BEEEcEDNEEERAEBEEMA X
%iﬁimug(T@%ﬁﬁ%%izfﬁX
EEEBRYBEEZRAERF
Z (BRI L HER E%ﬁ%'z%%ﬂ?)
IR BEZHMZEZETE - WER
KRB REBENRTERE E'JT@ETQ
IR ERBEEE - R2011812 A31
H BURBELAERZEEREAY
58,652,000/ 7T (20104 : &) - AR E
BEDHEBERR T REN I
REABELBEA2HWE - I E
ZMEFE 2 RRFHREAIEE -

& BEREBBAERAT 2011 F 5§

53



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mRa B R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011
B ZE2011F12A31HILFE

Segment Information

HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"),
the Chairman of the Group, in order to allocate resources to
segments and to assess their performance. The CODM reviews the
Group’s profit as a whole, which is determined in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policies, for performance assessment and
therefore no separate segment information is prepared by the
Group.

The Group’s revenue and non-current assets are generated from
and located in Hong Kong.

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing

SEEH

BREMBHREEANFIRBRIRER
TERERRE(NZEZRERRED
AEBXRFEEMRSZAEEKN 2
NEREEEBBIEEDH ADE
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RERKRERTASE ZERBEF
(REBEAEEZEFHRRETE) AETT
KA B AEEYESTH
HOBEFR -

AEEZBARFERBEED RN K
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RABBEFERE NS EEKRA10% A

over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as follows: P2 EBEERZWADT :
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET &
Investee A' BEXEEEA 4,406 N/A 71 i F3°
Borrower A? B2 AA? 2,893 2,102
Borrower B? &3 AB? 2,893 N/A 7~ i@ A
Investee B! BRI EES N/A 738 F° 4,774
Investee C' BEXREEC N/A & A° 2,700

! Revenue from dividend income ! FEREMKAZIKA

Revenue from interest on loan receivable
The corresponding revenue does not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group
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6. Turnover and Revenue 6. EEHERBA
Turnover SR
Turnover represents the gross proceeds from the followings: BEEIERA TS HEZMERIAL
A
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Disposal of held-for-trading investments ~ HE&EFEB HIRE 57,917 77,241
Dividend income % B A 4,996 7,800
Interest on loans receivable FEUE K F B 8,523 4,934
71,436 89,975
Revenue A
Revenue represents dividend income and interest on loans receivable. WAEREWAREREFHFE - &
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows: EEARFREZWADTAT
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Dividend income R B A 4,996 7,800
Interest on loans receivable JE UL E FF A 8,523 4,934
13,519 12,734
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
B 22011 F12A31HIEFE

7. Other Income

7. Hag A

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Interest on bank deposits |ITIFFFE 3 2
Interest on convertible notes AR ERFE 586 3,605
Indemnity fee for pledge of asset —EREZEITRE
for a company’s BREECBREEA
banking facility (Note 17 (i) (Kt e 17(i)) 2,340 —
Others E A = 18
2,929 3,625
8. Other Gains and Losses 8. Hftlkzm R E1E
2011 2010
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHHB ARz K
(note 28) (Hta£28) 1,370 —
Loss on disposal of available-for- HEAHREERE Y
sale investments & 1B (4,950) (24,805)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ~ FAA[ B E R EER
available-for-sale investments DERI=NTE
(note 17 (iii) & (iv)) (B3 176D % (iv)) (26,934) (11,749)
Fair value change of conversion option MR EEMS LIREREEY
embedded in convertible notes NEEES = (174)
Gain (loss) on debt component of EOBEEEEEISNDZ
convertible notes upon redemption Uy 55 (J&518) 2,916 (10,978)
Fair value change of held-for- BIEEEKREZ
trading investments NEEEY (13,007) 7,577
(40,605) (40,129)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

B Z2011F12H31HIEFE
9. Legal Claims 9. ZEHRZE
On 14 March 2008, a claim was brought against a subsidiary of the A2008F3A 148 REB 2 B RHE
Group, namely GR Investment Holdings Limited (“GR Investment”), EEERAR(2EDR—HE2AS
by an agent, Golden Eagle International (Group) Limited, alleging BREIRBERAR(T2RAE] 2AE
that GR Investment is liable for the payment of RMB12,750,000 B ARIRHZ=E EB2RAE
which was the balance of an unsettled agency commission & 5t & B 720004 18 it X 38 AR 7% -
regarding the provision of agency services in procuring the sales of ZHEERRLBAMABRAR 2K
an investment, namely Shanghai White Cat Company Limited B AEEREBERASESRINARKE
during the year 2000. 12,750,0007T °
As at 31 December 2009, the directors of the Company considered MR2009F 12 A31H - RIEEZEER
that it was not probable for GR Investment to be liable to the claim RABEBRESRERET KA e &
based on the legal opinion. BERE-
The case was concluded in the High Court of the Hong Kong ZEMH 201066 A25H E&F B & 5
Special Administrative Region on 25 June 2010 and GR Investment THESEERER 2 FRAE K
lost the case. The judgment sum and interest incurred for the claim H-ZBBREEEZHIHERE
were approximately HK$17,827,000, which was fully settled during A #917,827,00058 T B2 R E £2010
the year ended 31 December 2010. F12ANBIEFEAZENMNE -
10. Income Tax Credit 10. FIBBIE R
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Over-provision in prior years: BAFEBEEE:
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —EBENEMW (48) (83)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made for both years since
there is no assessable profit for both years.

MR AEERZMEFELEELRE
RB RN BUBRZMEFERE
AN S AE L BE -

& BEREBBAERAT 2011 £ 5§
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
B 22011 F12A31HIEFE

10. Income Tax Credit (continued)

10. FABHRER @)

The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss per the AFEZHERCTELES 2E WS
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows: KXZEBYEENT
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Loss before tax & B Al e 1B (41,114) (56,669)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate AR PT BT & 16.5%
of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) (2010%F : 16.5%) T E 2 Bi1H (6,784) (9,350)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for ~ LE#5 B 9 N EHFF X 2
tax purpose MBTE 5,322 6,593
Tax effect of income not taxable for BREEN 2 RRRIBAZ
tax purpose MG E (1,578) (1,287)
Over-provision in respect of prior years MTFERERE (48) (83)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERZHEAEBB BT E 3,040 4,044
(48) (83)
There is no significant unprovided deferred taxation at the end of the RmEMR AEEBTESE K REE
reporting periods. IEAETIE -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses RBEBR ASEE KA
of approximately HK$236,111,000 (2010: HK$211,600,000) TE &5 18 49236,111,0007%8 7T (2010 4F :
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has 211,600,000 7t.) °] F 70 3K 85 oK 2K &
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Ao B oK K OE M & AT FEA - '

Tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

VEERELCRBAEE -HEBEBEA
ERMESE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
B 22011 F12A31HIEFE

11. Loss for the Year

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

MEAXFEEFE

AEEERDIEGIA) THISE:

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERT FH T
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) FEE (HaF12) 180 188
Other staff costs Hth B B 2 3,033 2,240
Retirement benefit schemes contributions & ¢k 48 7 51 &I 4 2
(excluding directors) (BEEKRIN 152 98
Total staff costs SN S AR 3,365 2,526
Auditor’s remuneration % BB & 600 470
Depreciation of plant and equipment WENERETS 319 289
Investment management fee KEERE 3,825 3,200
Legal and professional fee related to legal  BREZEREBRR ZEE K
claims (included in other operating EEXBR(EBREEEAM
expenses) (note 9) wERE W) (K729) = 1,968
Net foreign exchange loss (gain) bE i B 1R (W s ) 5 143 (1)
and after crediting: REtA

Gain on disposal of plantand equipment  HEHE L& EH 2 Kz —

& BEREBBARAT 2011 F 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
B 22011 F12A31HIEFE

12. Directors’ Emoluments

12.EEM &

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 5 (2010: 6) directors E e F562(2010%F : 661) BF
were as follows: FBZMEemT :
Retirement
benefit
Directors’ scheme
fees contributions Total
EREF
EEHES BERLE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FH&xT FH&xT
Year ended 31 December 2011 B Z2011%F12A831H
IEEE
Executive director: WMITES:
Mr. Cheng Hairong RS = e —
Non-executive director: FEMITES
Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen A RILE = = —
Independent non-executive directors: YB3 JEFTTE F ¢
Mr. Feng Nien Shu LW Wi E 60 — 60
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard AR LE 60 — 60
Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa EREBZL 60 — 60
180 — 180
Total st 180 — 180
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
B 22011 F12A31HIEFE

12. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

12.EEM £ »

Retirement
benefit scheme
Directors’ fees  contributions Total
RIKE R
= ¥okn FHElH R @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT A&
Year ended 31 December 2010 HZE2010F12A31H
FEFE
Executive directors: WITES
Mr. Cheng Hairong X 8 B 5 — —
Mr. Cheuk Yuk Lung (Note) BERRLE (KF) 8 8
8 8
Non-executive director: FEMITESE
Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen RFREE — —
Independent non-executive directors: &3 JEHITE F :
Mr. Feng Nien Shu B S e & 60 60
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard Bk R T 60 60
Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa HERZ L 60 60
180 180
Total aEt 188 188

Note: Mr. Cheuk Yuk Lung resigned on 29 January 2010.

No directors waived any emoluments in both years.

Wiat - EEBES A R20109F 1 H29H BT -

B 3 50 7% P 8 67 T 19 EE A T B

)

O BEREEBAERAT 2011 £
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wRE B R R MY A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EHZE2011F12A31HILFE
13. Employees’ Emoluments 13. EEf &
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, AEBRERSHFMALH  HER
none (2010: 1) was director of the Company whose emoluments are NBEEEZQR0F: — &) EFE=Me
setoutin note 12 above. The emoluments of the remaining 5 (2010: 4) P EXHFE12° % 5% (20104 -
individuals were as follows: AF)ANTZEH2mT
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET
Salaries and other benefits Fre LHMET 2,542 1,871
Contributions to retirement benefits RORAE N ET 3
scheme Tt 130 75
2,672 1,946
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZHMEeN T T EHE :
2011 2010
No. of No. of
employees employees
EE A BEE A
Not exceeding HK$ 1,000,000 N85 1,000,000 7T 5 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T &= 1,500,000 7T — 1
During both years, no emoluments have been paid to the directors of RWEFEAR - AERIWEGFARQF
the Company or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to EFEShERRTFMATZINAEME
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. VA1 /5 A0 B2 3k 748 0 BE 7R &= [ A 2 i B

SHIERBER 2 mE -
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B 22011 F12A31HIEFE

14. Loss Per Share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to the owners of
the Company is based on the following data:

4. BRRE#E

ARBBEEAREEREAEBRIR
AT BURRE -

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Loss B8
Loss for purpose of basic HEERER
loss per share BBz EE (41,066) (56,586)
Number of shares BHEBE
Weighted average number of ordinary SFTEERER
shares for the purpose of basic B2
loss per share LGl BaS 716,552,827 634,754,608

For both years, no diluted loss per share is presented as there was no
potential ordinary share outstanding during both years.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2010 had been adjusted for the share subdivision effective on 28
June 2010 (note 27).

HREZMEFELERITEINZE
EEAR BYELZMEFEZ7
BEREEER-

e EEE2010F 12831 ILFE
LEREREBE 2T BBRME T
B R2010%6 4288 £ 2 K7 iF
A 1E P (T E27) o

& BEREBBARAT 2011 F 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE2011F12A31HIFFE

15. Plant and Equipment 15. BERRE

Office
equipment,
Leasehold Computer furniture and
improvements  equipment fixtures Total
WAER
B BEAR
HEWEEE EERE ®E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHTT T
COST R A
At 1 January 2010 M2010F1A1H — — — —
Additions g 1,096 161 221 1,478
Eliminated on disposals H B 8 — (43) — (43)
At 31 December 2010 201012 A31H 1,096 118 221 1,435
Additions ik — 61 1 62
At 31 December 2011 M20114F12 A31H 1,096 179 222 1,497
DEPRECIATION e
At 1January 2010 20101 HA1H — — — -
Provided for the year NEEHAE 200 49 40 289
Eliminated on disposals HE B i 8E — (13) — (13)
At 31 December 2010 M2010F 12 A31H 200 36 40 276
Provided for the year REERE 219 56 44 319
At 31 December 2011 K201 12 A31H 419 92 84 595
CARRYING VALUES FREE
At 31 December 2011 M2011F12 4318 677 87 138 902
At 31 December 2010 201012 H31H 896 82 181 1,159
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HZE2011F12A31HILFE
15. Plant and Equipment (continued) 15. JI\-'Eﬁ E )4 -591% (&)
The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on a T ENEEBEE DLNERERT
straight-line basis as follows: HIFHIGH IR AT & ¢
Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the term of the HEWERE BHIBFUUREE
lease or 3 years RYE)
Computer equipment Over 3 years BN R 3F LA E
Office equipment, Over 3 years WMAERWE 3FULE
furniture and fixtures ERREE
16. Interests in Associates/Amount Duetoan 16. Bi& ARz B4 — B
. =%
Associate i N |
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Costs of investment in associates — unlisted R & QA FIHRE 2K A—3IF L H 183 97
Share of post-acquisition profits and other {5 Uy B8 18 3& 7 &
comprehensive income 3 3
186 100
Amount due to an associate RN | 97 97

The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

F§1—J._FﬁEHF%L\\jTAI§FJETEE?qH %
RERBERFEE-

O BEREEBAERAT 2011 £
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

B Z2011F12A31HIEFE

16. Interests in Associates/Amount Duetoan  16. B{ & N Bl % FE 1+ — ]
Associate (continued) Bt N R RIE @)
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group had interests in the R20114 K2010F12A431H » A&
following associates: RUTEE AR FREEER

Proportion of nominal

Particulars of issued value of issued capital
Name of entity share capital held by the Group Principal activity
rEERFERZ
NCIECE ERTRAFE ERTRAEEZLE TEXK
2011 2010
Bright Honest Limited 50,000 shares of United States 25% 25% Inactive
Dollar (“USD") 1 each =
50,000 i B AL EI{E13E 7T
(IEx]) 2 K& ip
Easy Best Holdings Limited (Notej) 50,000 shares of USD 1 each 30% — Investment holding
(Kta#i) 50,000 B EE13ETT BREER
2 B 4n
Glorious Bright Limited (Note if) 100 ordinary shares of 30% — Money lending
FTARBRRAB (K aEi) HK$1 each Ee
100 & IR E{E 18 T
2 E B
Note i Proportion of result shared by the Group is 50% according to the Wiati: RIBFBR B s AEBSEZELE
shareholders’ agreement. L #1550% °
Note ii: Glorious Bright Limited (“Glorious Bright”) was a wholly-owned Wetii - FRAERAE(TFA) EAE A A]
subsidiary of the Company. In 2011, the Group disposed of 70% of 2EME LA o R20114F - A& [EH
equity interest. Since then it has become an associate of the Group HEHRE70% KA Ezm o BULZ R E7
(see note 28 for details). KAARERZHENA(FIERZ

Bl 28) »
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B 22011 F12A31HIEFE
16. Interests in an Associate/Amount Due to 16. & N EfEH A —
an Associate (continued) BE ARRE @
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s N E BB E N T 2B E R
associates is set out below: D
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Total assets BEBE 71,563 413
Total liabilities BERE (74,319) (13)
Net (liabilities) assets (BB EEFE (2,756) 400
Group's share of net (liabilities) assets AEEBEBERRZ
of associates (BB BEESE (847) 100
Revenue N = —
Loss for the year rFEE2ZEBE (2,068) (€)
Other comprehensive income HoAl 2 s — —
Group's share of losses and other FRAEE#E
comprehensive expense of associates B RNABER
for the year Hth2EMAX (1,033) —
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses of rEE EFJJ:%E%E?ETS%?HF%’D\
certain associates because its cumulative share of losses in those AIEE  RAR/AFELZEE S AR
associates has exceeded its investment costs. The Group will ZEFTBEEHBAHIRENRNT - EAE
resume recognition of its share of any future profits in those E#LH BN EERNABR 2 E
associates when its share of such profits equals the share of losses HEER AEEKE S mREHG
not recognised. ZERE R A 2 AR AR F] o
The amounts of unrecognised share of losses of those associates, RZzmEFERREAHOZERE D
extracted from the relevant unaudited management accounts of ABEZARRE D REEZSH
associates, both for the year and cumulatively are as follows: ERRIZHBAEZEEEE 275
LU
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Unrecognised share of losses of FABEBERRBEZ
associates for the year RERESHE (1,033) —
Accumulated unrecognised share of Z2FtEEBERREBEEZ
losses of associates RERTH (1,033) —
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
B 22011 F12A31HIEFE

17. Available-For-Sale Investments

17. i HHERE

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets: FERMEBEE -
Unlisted equity securities (notes i and ii) IE ETRAEE (B aEi i) 98,106 39,458
Less: Impairment losses (note iii) B ORE B R (B atiil) (14,597) (3,648)
83,509 35,810
Hong Kong listed equity securities, atfair &8 F WA AFEF -
value (note iv) NEAE (K tiv) 97,696 122,011
181,205 157,821
Current asset: MENVEEE
Investment in convertible notes — debt RABEREZIEE
portion (Note 18) — &% D (K 7E18) — 16,290

Notes:

Witz -

(i)

Included in unlisted equity securities above is the Group’s investment
in GCA Professional Services Group Limited (“GCA Professional”), a
company incorporated in Hong Kong, with a carrying amount of
HK$10,602,000 (2010: HK$5,000,000). It was measured at cost as at
31 December 2010, because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates was so significant that the directors of the Company were
of the opinion that its fair value could not be measured reliably.

During the year, GreaterChina Professional Services Limited
(“GreaterChina”), the major subsidiary of GCA Professional became
listed on the Stock Exchange. The directors of the Company consider
the fair value of this investment could be measured reliably, and the
investment is measured at fair value as at 31 December 2011 by
reference to the valuation carried out by independent valuer. The fair
value gain of HK$5,602,000 was recognised in other comprehensive
income.

The main assumptions and inputs used in the valuation of the
investment include:

o the stock price of the shares of GreaterChina as at 31
December 2011 is HK$0.2,

o the marketability of the shares of GCA Professional held by the
Group.
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RE U R R MR (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2011
B ZE2011F12A31HILFE

17. Available-For-Sale Investments (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The remaining unlisted equity securities are measured at cost less
impairment at the end of the reporting period because the range of
the reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably.

Included in unlisted equity securities above is an investment with a
carrying amount of HK$53,046,000 (2010: nil). The shares of the
subsidiary of this investee have been pledged to a bank as security for
a loan facility expiring 3 November 2018 granted by the bank to a
listed company in Hong Kong (“Borrower”). Pursuant to an indemnity
agreement signed with the Borrower in November 2011, the Group
will be indemnified for the investment cost against any loss or
damage arising from the above pledge of shares. The Group is
entitled to an indemnity fee of HK$2,340,000 for the pledge, which
is recognised in profit or loss for the current year. The investee is
controlled by an individual who has approximately 19% equity
interest in the Borrower at the date of indemnity agreement. The
principal activity of the investee is investment holding and the
principal activity of its principal subsidiary is zinc and lead mining in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

At the end of the reporting period, impairment loss has been
recognised for the cost of an investment in unlisted equity securities
amounting to approximately HK$14,597,000 (2010: HK$3,648,000).
The amount of the impairment loss of HK$10,949,000 recognised in
the profit or loss in 2011 is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the investment and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar investment.

For listed equity securities, the fair value is determined with reference
to quoted market bid prices. During the year, impairment loss of
approximately HK$15,985,000 (2010: HK$11,749,000) was
recognised in respect of certain of the Group’s Hong Kong listed
equity securities because there was a significant decline in the fair
value of the relevant equity securities below their cost.

17. TR HERE @)

WaE (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

HREBIFLTIRAERZEER
FEMGFTHBELKX AR FEERR
BRZERZ N TFETEEEFNE &
PO & B K H% f AK HIBR R 8 & 2 -

At FEF R AR B E e — Bk
[ 18 % 53,046,000% 7T 2 # & (2010
Ff) o WESREZFEZNWEB A
AlZBRGEFFRITIEAR T — /A
EE LT AGI(EHADZ —HR
2018F 11 A3HFI Bz EZ @ E 2 #H
i dp o R IEEEFAR2011F11A
BEZWEE  NEBESH Lt
& 17 1 9 1 ¢ & B 2K BT EE AE 2 AT ]
BALIEZEREFE - AEEF A
5t B 7 12 22,340,000 7T 2
& ZeBRAFEEEZRRAE
ReoBXKREERRFIEGZEH
BEKA#19% A8 K 1 25 2 18 I A
T BRI EEFEEFAR
B MAFTENBAFMNEEE
BARBPEANRKLFE ([FE]])FFHR
FER Y o

RIFERI K B3I F IR A FE
2 E BN R #914,597,000% T
(20104 : 3,648,000% i ) .2 )i 1& /&
78 o R20114F 7 18 25 #E 38 .2 6l 18 &5
18 % 5875 10,949,000 7T » 2 L8 &
CHREE S G ARKE 2 R EEKE
UREZHITH SRR HE B
BZRZEZ8A8 -

B ETRAZESME A FEIGR
EHBTEEAEET - RAFE -
AREEAREZFSRZ X FEXET
BEBRERE HERAEEHET
BB LTIRAEFHERAEEBL
15,985,000,% 7T (20104 : 11,749,000
BT) °

& BEREEBARAT 2011 FH
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE2011F12A31HIFFEZE

18. Investment in Convertible Notes 1. R EAREE 2KRE

Investment in convertible notes represents investments in convertible
notes issued by Hanny Holdings Limited (“Hanny”). Hanny is a
company listed on the Stock Exchange.

On 7 October 2009, the Group purchased 2% convertible notes
issued by Hanny with principal amount of HK$16.44 million at a
discount for HK$12.33 million and with maturity on 15 June 2011
entitling the Group to convert into shares in Hanny at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.59 (subject to adjustments) which was
subsequently adjusted to HK$15.83 as a result of share
consolidation by Hanny for which every fifty issued shares had been
consolidated into one share and issue of open offer shares by
Hanny.

The investment in the convertible notes have been split between
debt component and embedded derivatives. The debt portions of
the convertible notes are designated upon initial recognition as
available-for-sale financial assets. The embedded conversion options
are deemed as held for trading and recognised at fair value. The fair
values of the debt component and the embedded conversion
options as at 31 December 2010 are determined by the directors of
the Company with reference to the valuation performed by
professional valuers, using the Binomial Lattice Model.

The respective debt portion and conversion option of the convertible
notes issued by Hanny are as follows:

Debt portion
BEBBH

2011
HK$’000
TRER

RABBERER 2 RERENREEER
RAB(MBE])ET2ABBRRERZ
RE -BESKMIFZ EHATE -

F2009F 10878 AEBZITEE
123388 LBEREET 2 ASEAR
1,644 878 LI 1201146 A 15 H 2 £
2EMBREE - B ASBEBRRER
25 % BE0598 u (7] FHRAE) i
wE RGN HiaEHEEARERN
AEH(EBRTREBITRMDAENHA—
BIRGH) RBBMETARBERMM
FEE15.83F T -

RABRRERE R EE D BEBKBHG
ERAENMETAE -TJBRRERZER
BHOEERV L ERAKIIER AT
EHNBEE - NELRNEERERA
BEEBEWEATFERR - EHIBH
RAERBEEENR2010612A31H
ZRFETAARREESEZHEM
BRIVAZIEX S EBERET Z(EEMR
BT -

BEEETHRARIBRZEB O R
RBEREREFEIWT

Conversion option

RBEERE
2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TET

Hanny 7 —

16,290 — —

Fair value of the conversion option embedded in the convertible
note issued by Hanny is nil as at 31 December 2010.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
B ZE2011F12A31HILFE

18. Investment in Convertible Notes (continueq)

On 15 June 2011, the Group redeemed the 2% convertible notes

issued by Hanny upon their maturity at the principal amount of
HK$16,440,000 and interest of HK$331,000. After the redemption,

there
2011.

were no convertible notes outstanding as at 31 December

Loss on changes in the fair value of the embedded conversion

option of HK$174,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the year

ended 31 December 2010. No gain or loss on changes in the fair

value

of the embedded conversion option is recognised for the

current year.

Details of the inputs used in the valuation of the convertible notes as

at 31 December 2010 were as follows:

18. RATBRKREBZRE

R2011F6 158 & £ B K 3 5
FFERNMmBEEITZEXRAEY
THMREE A2BERMNEDH A
16,440,000 JC 1 331,0007% Jt ° B [3
% FR2011FE12 A31 8 » £ (T ]
RITE 2R ERE -

8

HE2010F12A31BIEFEE REHR
BBEER 2 ATEZE 2 EIE174,000
BILTEREBERRER AFEHERE
RASERBEEREZAFEEZH 2K

MR2010F12 318 HETHBKRZE
FrE Bz ABEFBEMNINT -

Hanny convertible notes IREABR RS
Stock price & E HK$0.3278 7T
Conversion price RgmE HK$15.837% 7T
Volatility (note) g (K aF) 49.87%
Dividend yield 8= 0%
Option life EEETH 0.46yearsF
Risk free rate £ g F) X 0.31%
Effective interest rate for discounting WIREB B0 < BER

debt component = 7.54%
Note: Volatility of the issuer’s share price was estimated by the average Hiat - 77 AREBZ WHIFETIIRIEZETT AR

annualised standard deviations of the continuously compounded
rates of return on the issuer’s share price.

BZiEEEBHREZ FHFE
EEGE T

& BEREBBAERAT 2011 F 5§
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B ZE2011F12A31HILFE

19. Loans to Associates

The Group’s loan to an associate included in current assets of
HK$46,557,000 (2010: nil) at 31 December 2011 is interest-free
and unsecured. The loan is repayable within twelve months from
the end of the reporting period. Pursuant to the shareholders’
agreement entered into on 30 December 2011 (the “Agreement”),
the associate agreed to repay the loan upon receipt by the associate
of its current loans receivable due from three independent third
parties, which are unsecured except for an amount of
HK$21,082,000 (2010: nil) secured by certain listed and unlisted

equity instruments.

The Group’s loans to associates included in non-current assets of
HK$12,095,000 (2010: nil) at 31 December 2011, are interest-free
and unsecured. The loans are repayable after twelve months from
the end of the reporting period. Included in the amount is a loan of
HK$6,239,000 which pursuant to the Agreement, the associate
agreed to repay upon receipt of its non-current loan receivable due
from an independent third party, which is secured by equity

instruments in GCA Professional.

Of the above amounts, an aggregate of HK$52,796,000 (2010: nil)
was advanced to an associate which was formerly a subsidiary of
the Company before the Group lost control of that subsidiary as

explained in note 28.

20. Other Asset

Other asset represents golf club membership held by the Group

stated at cost less any impairment losses.

21. Held-For-Trading Listed Equity Investments

Held-for-trading listed equity investments represent equity securities

listedin Hong Kong.
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20.

21.

B E RN EMR

R201MF12A31H RBEEBEAR
E£E [ — M E A 7 E 546,557,000
BIL(2010F: &) A2 B RER
H-BRERBESHRET T=Z@A
NEE - RIEFR2011F12H830852
ZHQ%&’#(H% 2 BEQARRAE

EBMERRBIERK =B LE=
EZEDHHFELlﬂzﬁ RREER BRESP
21,082,000 7t (20104 « £ ) U &/ F
FHRFLTHRAT AR %
BEENR-

MR2011F12A318  ERBEERRE
N 52 & [ B 2 A B & 312,095,000
720105 &) AR B REEA -
\/T)\/,\E/\i&iHﬂﬂEin‘l"f’—f.ﬂTéf

EMZ%%‘EEP26239000,57E1§¥£
7%2&,&/‘\1*&%)%@[5% iiM/‘\j
M&ulJﬁ}Euﬁzf%ﬁI%*Ez#EDHﬂ
FEWER(NEESE ZCRAT AE
B BEE

MLt & BEAh - & $£52,796,0007% T
(20104 : &) B ¥ — B ZE A
MAEBERYEZ AR ZIEH AT
NEEABARNE ZW B R B (R
285wt ©

Ht&EE

Hith & B35 AN & B 5 1R AR AE )
WMEBRIEZSBMRIREMELE -

BEEELTRARE

FEEBELHTRAREREREELD
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
B 22011 F12A31HIEFE

22. Particulars of Investments Held by the
Group

Particulars of investments held by the Group as at 31 December 2011
disclosed pursuant to Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as follows:

22.

FEBFRAZREFRS

REFER201MFENANBEAEZIERE
HERELTRAENSEWENT :

Dividend/
Proportion interest
of income Net assets
investee’s received  attributable
Place of capital Fair  during the tothe Provision  Unrealised Principal activities/
Name incorporation owned Cost value year investment made  gain/(loss) place of operation
PR R FREW REE RER
REAAZ ZRE/ BEMG Btz '¢-94
A1 EfRILE  EALA FE ATE FEWA EERE BE (B8) TE%/CEY
HK$ million HK$ million  HKS$ million HKS$ million  HKS million  HK$ million
BERT HEERT HBEER BE®ET HE#ER HEAER
(Note 2) (Note 3)
(Hfi2) (Hft3)
Listed equity securities
LHRAES
ITC Properties Group Bermuda 471% 45.59 53.97 — 113.87 — 8.38 Property development
Limited (Note 4) EE:3:3 and investment, golf
EEMESE resort and leisure
BRAR (Hit4) operations, securities
trading and loan financing
services/Hong Kong
Macau and the PRC
MEERRRE
BRXKEERES
2E BFEER
ERREARE/BE -
R R E
PYI Corporation Limited Bermuda 3.36% 49.93 29.07 44 175.05 20.86 — Infrastructure investment and
REZEERDA ARE the operation of bulk cargo

ports and logistics facilities/
the PRC

HRRERATHE
BOSENRDR
i,/
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B 22011 F12A31HIEFE

22. Particulars of Investments Held by the
Group (continued)

2. AEBEREEZ2REFE

Dividend/
Proportion interest
of income Net assets
investee’s received  attributable
Place of capital Fair  during the to the Provision  Unrealised Principal activities/
Name incorporation owned Cost value year investment made  gain/(loss) place of operation
AR FRER REH £y 3]
RENRZ ZRE/ BEME Btz i/
B AR LBE  EARLA RE AFE  MERA BERE B (BB) TE#H /K&y
HK$ million HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million  HKS million  HK$ million
BEET HEER BEERT BEERL EE i BEERT
(Note 2) (Note 3)
(W2) (Wt3)
Listed equity securities
(Continued)
LHREES(E)
New Capital International ~ Cayman Islands 2.65% 32.56 25.50 — 7.69 — (7.06) Investments in money market
Investment Limited HEHS securities and equity and
HEABRRRKRE debt related securities in
BRAAE listed and unlisted entities
on a global basis/Hong
Kong and the PRC
REXHZEBTIS
EHAR TR
FETRAZRER
EBIEEES/FER
h
Rosedale Hotel Bermuda 411% 15.55 10.94 — 89.07 5.69 1.07 Operation of hotel business/
Holdings Limited Hong Kong and the PRC
HBEE TR BRE AE£KEE/
BABRAAE L
[TC Corporation Bermuda 1.32% 4.89 3.70 0.21 29.44 1.18 — Investments in securities,
EELEE EE 3 properties and other
investments/Hong Kong
and the PRC
EFROEREUR
HiRE/BERTE
HSBC Holdings Plc England 0.00008% 131 0.80 0.09 0.98 — (0.52) Banking and financial
ELERAERDR " services/global operation
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2. XREEFEE2REFE®

22. Particulars of Investments Held by the

Group (continued)

Dividend/
Proportion interest
of income Net assets
investee’s received  attributable
Place of capital Fair  during the to the Provision  Unrealised Principal activities/
Name incorporation owned Cost value year investment made  gain/(loss) place of operation
PR R FRER REE REH
RENRZ ZBE/ BEMG Bz ¢-v8
2B ARk E  EALA FE& ATE FEWA BERE BE (B8) TE$%/CeuY
HKS$ million HK$ million  HKS million HKS$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BEET HEBER BEET BEET BEER BEERT
(Note 2) (Note 3)
(Htet2) (H&£3)
Unlisted equity securities
FEHRARS
Rakarta Limited British Virgin 8.00% 53.05 53.05 — 0.74 — — Investments in securities and
Islands (“BVI") other investments/Hong
KEREIHS Kong and the PRC
([RBEREX BHEBEREMEE/
#5)) B RE
GCA Professional Hong Kong 20.00% 5.00 10.60 — 14.14 — 5.60 Provision of professional
EEEE e (Note 1) services/Hong Kong and
(Ha1) the PRC
RESERE/EA
R
Yantai Juli Fine Chemical The PRC 1.50% 25.81 14.86 — 14.86 10.95 — Production of hi-tech
Co., Ltd H chemical products
ERENBEIRH including toluene
BRAAF diisocyanate for
manufacturing industry/
the PRC
EERRBIIER
BEREEERN
FRRARE/ 5
A Stars Entertainment BVI 13.33% 5.00 5.00 — 3.51 — — Multi-media production,
Group Limited (Note4) ~ EBRIES publication and talent
EHRESEERLA agencies/Hong Kong and
(Kizta) the PRC
ZEREE  HRR
ATENRE/FER
H

BEEREBABERAT 2011 7]
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EHZE2011F12A31HILFE
22. Particulars of Investments Held by the 2. XEERFEZ2REFE @
Group (continued)
Particulars of investments held by the Group as at 31 December 2010 AREER2010F12A3MBFEEZRE
disclosed pursuant to Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as follows: HERE FTHENEHENT :
Dividend/
interest
income
Proportion of received Net assets
Place of investee’s Fair ~ duringthe attributable to Provision Unrealised Principal activities/
Name incorporation  capital owned Cost value year  the investment made gain/(loss) place of operation
PR FRNEY RER RER
REQAZ rd 3-8 B BIEH 2 W/
e Ak AR RE ATE FEKA BEFE B (B1B) FE£K/Hen
HK$ million  HK$ million  HKS$ million HK$ million  HK§ million  HK$ million
BERT BEAT AEER BERT EBEEBT BERT
(Note 2) (Note 3)
(Hit2) (Hfit3)
Listed equity securities
LHREES
ITC Properties Bermuda 471% 45.59 51.58 — 112.93 — 5.99 Property development and
Group Limited BRE investment, golf resort
EEBESE and leisure operations,
ARRAA securities trading and
loan financing services/
Hong Kong, Macau and
the PRC
SRRKEERES
BRBERSE/ B
B R
PYI Corporation Limited Bermuda 3.24% 48.46 47.00 — 195.96 11.75 (1.46) Infrastructure investment
RELZEERDA BRE and the operation of bulk

cargo ports and logistics
facilities/the PRC

ERRERATHE
BOSENRDR
i,/
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22. Particulars of Investments Held by the
Group (continued)

2. XEBREEZ2REFB®

Dividend/
interest
income
Proportion received Net assets
Place of of investee’s Fair ~ duringthe attributable to Provision Unrealised Principal activities/
Name incorporation  capital owned Cost value year  the investment made gain/(loss) place of operation
PR FREKR RERE RER
REQAZ pd3-V4 B G BHELEZ ez
A1 MK EARLH RE ATE FEMA EEFE B (BB) TEE£B/880%
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BEET BEERT BEET BEET BEAT BEET
(Note 2) (Note 3)
(Hit2) (Ht5£3)
Listed equity securities
(Continued)
LHREES(E)
New Capital International ~ Cayman Islands 2.69% 33.07 35.93 — 5.53 — 2.86  Investmentsin money market
Investment Limited REEHE securities and equity and
HERBERRE debt related securities in
BERAT listed and unlisted entities
on a global basis/Hong
Kong and the PRC
REZRZERTS
FEHRARETR
FETRRZHRER
ERIEEES/FAR
B
Rosedale Hotel Holdings Bermuda 411% 15.55 12.69 2.70 97.93 — (2.86) Operation of hotel business/
Limited Hong Kong and the PRC
HEEEER EE 3 BEEBEE/
BRRAR BERF
ITC Corporation Bermuda 1.32% 4.89 3.80 477 26.05 — (1.09) Investments in securities,
BHELELE BRE properties and other
investments/Hong Kong
and the PRC
BHRRMEREUR
HiiRE/BERT
HSBC Holdings Plc England 0.00022% 3.84 3.15 0.1 248 — (0.69) Banking and financial services/
ESZBRBRAR #E global operation
RIRGBRYE/
E$2¢ 3
Unlisted equity securities
FETRAES
GCA Professional Hong Kong 20.00% 5.00 5.00 — 8.12 — — Provision of professional
BEEE N (Note 1) services/Hong
(Hizt1) Kong and the PRC
RESERE/EA
R

O BEREEBAERAT 2011 £
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EHZE2011F12A31HILFE
22. Particulars of Investments Held by the 2. XEBREEZ2REFB®
Group (continued)
Dividend/
interest
income
Proportion received Net assets
Place of of investee’s Fair ~ duringthe  attributable to Provision Unrealised Principal activities/
Name incorporation  capital owned Cost value year  the investment made gain/(loss) place of operation
PR PR FREKR RERE RER
RERAZ ZBE/ B BIEHZ Wiz
4 afmms  EARLH [R{E ATE FIEBA BEFA B (B1R) FEXK /W2
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BEET BEBR BEET BEET BEAT BEET
(Note 2) (Note 3)
(Htit2) (Hti£3)
Yantai Juli Fine Chemical ~ The PRC 1.50% 25.81 25.81 — 13.52 — — Production of hi-tech
Co., Ltd H chemical products
EaENB®ELIRG including toluene
ARAR diisocyanate for
manufacturing
industry/the PRC
YERRRIIER-
BEMIEZAN
RAZRARKE/+
A Stars Entertainment BVI 13.33% 5.00 5.00 — 4.03 — — Multi-media production,
Group Limited HBRAHEE publication and
EHRESEERANA talent agencies/
Hong Kong and
the PRC
SRERME - HIRR
ATENRE/EHR
h
Convertible note
ARREE
Hanny Holdings Limited Bermuda N/A 12.33 16.29 033 N/A — N/A Trading of securities, holding
BEAKEERARA BRE i A i @A ofvessels for sand mining,

industrial water supply
business, property
development and
trading and other strategic
investments/Hong Kong
and the PRC

EHEE HERY

HeE - TEHKER -

NEBRREER
iR ERE/
EERS
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22. Particulars of Investments Held by the
Group (continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5

The Group is not able to exercise significant influence over GCA
Professional because it does not have the power to appoint directors
to participate in the financial and operating policy of the investee
company. Accordingly, it is classified as an available-for-sale
investment.

For listed equity securities, net assets attributable to the investment
are based on latest published interim financial statements. For
unlisted investments, net assets attributable to investments are
based on unaudited financial statements as at the end of the
reporting period.

Unrealised gain (loss) represents the difference between fair value
and cost of the respective investment in equity securities, excluding
any impairment loss recognised.

Subsequent to 31 December 2011, the Group disposed A Stars
Entertainment Group Limited. The Group also partially disposed and
partially converted into loan notes regarding the investment in ITC
Properties Group Limited.

An impairment provision of HK$3,648,000 (2010: HK$3,648,000)
had been made for the cost of an investment in Power Digital Card
Limited, an unlisted equity security.

2. AEBEREEZREFT

Mt -

a2 -

a3 -

iz :

ffi5 -

BN AEFEEZEIZEZTRE
RAIZEFLZHBEZRKE
RAIZHBEREERE  HAE
B EFRENHEERTZES -
it BEEREDERAHLE
KE -

BEMRAZFESRME REEHE
JE 1 B B VF B T 45k 5 A= A H T 3
ZHHYHEIHRE - RIFLTRE
mME KERBEGLEEFET
KERBEHRZ RAEERY B
i

KRB W (F1R) 166 B R K &
HSREZANFERREZZEH
TEREANE#RZBERER -

R20114E12 431 5 18 » 7K % 3 4
EEMREEFBER A - Bl
REFE L E B 5 R =R EE
BBERRAZIRE WS %
BEXER -

E Bt Power Digital Card Limited ( 3f
FHRAFF)ZIREMK AL
3,648,000;% 7T (20104F : 3,648,000
BIT) 2 (B R o

& BEREBBAERAT 2011 F 5§
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23. Loan Receivable

23. EWE &

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FAET
Secured Vo — 7,402
Unsecured A — 18,000
— 25,402

Analysed as: DR
Current B HA — 18,000
Non-current JERDHR — 7,402
— 25,402

During the year ended 31 December, 2011, the Group disposed of
its subsidiary, Glorious Bright, which held loan receivable. Details are
set out in note 28.

At 31 December 2010, the Group's current loan receivable of
HK$18,000,000 carried interest at 15% per annum and was
secured. The loan facility amount granted to this borrower was
HK$18,000,000, which had been fully drawn.

At 31 December 2010, the Group’s non-current loan receivable of
HK$7,402,000 carried interest at 12% per annum. It was secured
by investments in GCA Professional. The loan facility amount
granted to this borrower was HK$12,000,000, has been fully drawn
and partially repaid during the year ended 31 December 2010.
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HEENBRARTE ZAABAE
WEK - BREFBH NI E28

R2010F 12 A31H - AEBE Z BV HifE
U & X £ 18,000,0007% JT & F F X
BEFERARBEF BETZERA
2 B 3k BhimEE E £18,000,0007% T
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2010612 8318 A& E 2 FEAE
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B 22011 F12A31HIEFE
24. Amounts due from Related Companies 24, FEWNBEE N B FKIE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Amount due from: FEUL T 51 A RIFRIE -
Linkson Investment Limited ERFEER AT
("Linkson nbestment”) (MEHREZED 343 363
Greater China Corporate BEMERS
Consultancy & Services Limited BRAF
("GC Corporate Services") (MEESFERB]) = 43
343 406
Linkson Investment and GC Corporate Services are fellow ERREMEZECERBREEER
subsidiaries of Greater China Capital Limited (“GC Capital”), the ERAARI(EEBEARD CRENER
investment manager of the Group that provides investment Al REBEARARAEE 2 REKE
management services to the Group in relation to the Group’s REAEECRENAEEHREHEEE
investments. BR -
The amount due from Linkson Investment represents rental deposits EREHRKREZRBERAEBENZ
paid by the Group, which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable Hekes AEEF RERERAB
upon expiry of the relevant tenancy agreement. AN ERREER -

25. Other Receivables

25, H b fE W fR 1H

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Indemnity fee receivable for pledge of R 1 /N
assets for a company’s R 1T Bh a4
banking facility (note 17(ii)) BE 2 EWCTRE (A 173) 2,340 —
Earnest money for a potential BEREBBEZHER
investment project (note) (K1 5E) 5,000 —
Other prepayments and deposits H A FB A B R F R 680 655
Interest receivables JE USRI 2 — 786
Receivables from a securities broker B — BB HEL 2R — 1,676
8,020 3,117
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25. Other Receivables (ontinued) 25.

Note: During the year, the Group made an earnest money deposit of
HK$5,000,000 in connection with a potential investment in an
unlisted equity security. The deposit is unsecured and interest free
and makes with an independent third party. Pursuant to an
agreement signed with that independent third party, the earnest
money deposit is refundable to the Group during 2012.

HianEUWBRIE )

Wit FA - KEBFGRIELTRAZESF
2 BT #% & H H fE 115,000,000 ¢
CHEL ZHELBERER R
B WEBTEZF I IRIEHEZ
BUE=ZHEIZHE ZHEL
R2012FRETFAREE -

26. Other Payables and Accruals 26. Htt BN BRERETEE
2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Accruals st aE 1,551 2,364
Payable to an investee company (note) FE 45 & A RIFRIE (B 7) — 5,000
Payables to a securities broker JE 1< 38 5 48 42 SRR . 298

1,551 7,662

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2010, an available-for-sale
investment in unlisted equity securities was purchased at a
consideration of HK$5,000,000. The consideration was recognised as
other payables as at 31 December 2010 and settled during the
current year.
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HZE2011F12A31HIEFE
27. Share Capital 27. B
Number of Nominal
shares value
i - Q] HE
HK$'000
FAET
Ordinary shares ZER
Authorised: JERE
At 1 January 2010 (at HK$0.10 each) R2010F1 H1H
(3 EFR0.1087T) 300,000,000 30,000
Increase in authorised share capital (hote i) EE R A IE
(Kt ati) 700,000,000 70,000
1,000,000,000 100,000
Effect of share subdivision (note ii) f& 0 M 2 2 & (B 5% i) 3,000,000,000 —
At 31 December 2010 and 7201012 A31H
31 December 2011 (at HK$0.025 each) K2011%12A31H
(% & 1%0.025/57T) 4,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITREMBRA
At 1 January 2010 (at HK$0.10 each) 7R2010F1 A1 H
(3 ER0.1087T) 128,289,200 12,829
Issue of shares on first share placing RERXRNEERFETZ
(note iii) B& 10 (K7 aziii) 21,300,000 2,130
Effect of share subdivision (note ij) BH Iz 2 & (M aFi) 448,767,600 —
Issue of shares on second share placing REZABRHEERETZ
(note iv) B& 10 (K7 aziv) 119,600,000 2,990
At 31 December 2010 (at HK$0.025 each) R2010F12A31H
(5% 0.025% 1) 717,956,800 17,949
Share repurchased and cancelled (note v) [EEAEP e 40
(Bt atv) (5,410,000) (135)
At 31 December 2011 (at HK$0.025 each) R2011F12A831H
(% &R%0.025%7T) 712,546,800 17,814

& BEREBBERAT 2011 £ 5§
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B ZE2011F12A31HILFE

27. Share Capital (continued)

Notes:

(i) On 25 June 2010, the Company's shareholders approved the increase
of the authorised share capital from HK$30,000,000 comprising
300,000,000 shares to HK$100,000,000 comprising 1,000,000,000

27. R )
EE
() R2010F6 H25H » Ko Gl R E #E &

#5% F B 7K B930,000,000% 7T (61 4%
300,000,000 4% % 17) ¥ 2 100,000,000

shares. & 7T (8175 1,000,000,000 8 R 17) °

(i) On 28 June 2010, the Company completed a share subdivision. Each (i)  HR2010F6H28H + K1 7l 5 5L AR 17
then existing issued and unissued share of HK$0.10 each of the i Hig AL AIFREEO10E
Company was subdivided into 4 ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each. TZERBEBEE ZHITRRETRG
Upon the completion of the share subdivision, the authorised share A B4R 7 IR H (H0.0258 T 2 &
capital of the Company was HK$100,000,000 comprising ER o RGBT K2 KN Flz
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each, of which % FE R 7K 5 100,000,000 7T € 1%
598,356,800 ordinary shares were in issue and fully paid. 4,000,000,000 % %+ f% & 18 0.025% 7T

2 & E R A 598,356,800 & i@
BREZETREHE -

(i) On 11 February 2010, the Company completed a first top-up placing (i)  HR2010F2H11H KD GEIREH
of 21,300,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at a price of B A2010F 1 H28H 2 fil & )% ;7 b2
HK$1.80 per share pursuant to the placing and subscription & 1% & K1.80% T 2 B 15 % K
agreements dated 28 January 2010. The gross proceeds from this 21,300,000/% £ iR [ (60.18 7T .2 #7
placing of shares was approximately HK$38.3 million. TBRCERGEERITIE - B2

17 B & BT 12 70 T8 48 58 49 /3 3,830 4 &
ST

(iv)  On 12 August 2010, the Company completed a second top-up (iv)  R2010F8H12H KX &l IR # H
placing of 119,600,000 new shares of HK$0.025 each at a price of B AB2010F7 H29A0 2 il & K 7 &
HK$0.75 each pursuant to the placing and subscription agreements Wi F 0758 T 2 B 15 7 Ak
dated 29 July 2010. The gross proceeds from this placing of shares 119,600,000 f% % % [E] 18 0.025 & 7T .2
was approximately HK$89.7 million. RO ZEZNEEEHILE - B

R 17 B & BT 13 50 TH 4B 58 4 /38,9704
JBIT °
()  During the year, the Company repurchased its own shares through V) FA AXREFEBHXAERAELRS
the Stock Exchange as follows: ZRRG W AR -
No. of
ordinary shares Aggregate
Month of repurchase of HK$0.025 each Price per share consideration paid
& IR E 180.0258 T
FE 5] A 17 ZEBEREE FRE% ENHERE
Highest Lowest
71 R®1IE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT TFET
September 9H 5,410,000 0.320 0.315 1,714
The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase. kR 7 R Bl 12 B A A A o
None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any FABEARAZWERAIEE - 1
of the Company’s listed securities during the year. & I D] K 2 7] (T o] LTI B 55

The issued capital of the Company was decreased to R TE K 7% BB Bl IR R 2011412 A

HK$17,813,670, representing 712,546,800 shares of HK$0.025 3NH ARBZBEETRARAD E

each upon completion of this repurchase and as at 31 December 17,813,670/ 7t X & & & 0.025/8 7T

2011.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

wRa B R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HZE2011F12A31HILFE
28. Disposal of A Subsidiary 28. HE—EHE A A

On 27 October 2011, the Group and Sino Tycoon Investments M2011FE10A827H - &K A &) 8635 3/

Limited, an independent third party, entered into a sales and 26 = 75 Sino Tycoon Investments Limited 5]

purchase agreement pursuant to which the Group disposed of its YEEHHE B AEBEHELRR

70% equity interests in Glorious Bright, a subsidiary of the AZMBRAR TR Z70%K#E - Z 1

Company. The disposal was completed on 30 December 2011. EEEN2011F12 A30H /K °

The aggregate net assets of Glorious Bright at the date of disposal REEBBMTREZEEFERAENT

were as follows: FToR

HK$'000
FAT

Net assets disposed of: LTHEEE 2BEEFE :

Loan and interest receivable FEWE KR FE 51,367
Bank balances and cash WITEHRRE S 10,145
61,512

Retained interest classified as interests in associates (note i) # ¥8 A4 A RIER 2R B % (86)

(Bt azi)
Transferred to loan to an associate (note i) EREEMEE QR ER (W) (52,796)
8,630

Gain on disposal & 2 W 1,370

Total consideration BRAE 10,000

Satisfied by: ERAR:

Cash Re 10,000

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEMEE RS ML FHE

Cash consideration BeRE 10,000
Bank balances and cash disposed of IR ECRITHEBR LIRS (10,145)
(145)

Notes: W&t -

() Upon the disposal, HK$10,000,000 was regarded as consideration (0 {HE£  10,000,0008 T84 « ()i
for: (i) the sale shares, being 70% of the issue share capital of ERRG  R20114E 128301 FEE
Glorious Bright as at 30 December 2011, and (ii) the sale loan of BITHRANZ 70% ¢ R (i) H E B —‘F;,_,u
HK$9,800,000 due by Glorious Bright to the Group before disposal. KIKNEEH 9,800,000 T 5 E B
The retained interest classified as interests in associates is calculated /Jg/ﬁf RIS B BB ,ﬂ Z jgé
by reference to the fair value of the sale shares.  BREREERR R T N e E

& BEREBBARAT 2011 F 5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

wRE B IS R R MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011

B 22011 F12A31HIEFE
28. Disposal of A Subsidiary (continved) 28. HE— BB AR @

Notes: (continued) HiaE - (&

(i)~ The amount represents the amount due from Glorious Bright to the (i) ZFEIETARANEEZNELR AR
Group when it was the Group’s subsidiary amounting to KN £ [E 2 62,596,000 7T+ 6 E
HK$62,596,000, net of the sale loan disposed. The amount was HEWHEEAN HERZSEET
reclassified to loan to an associate upon the disposal. MREHE RN BER -

29. Operating Leases 29. €EHEY

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases during the FR-REBEEEROMT 2&ERS

year:

2011 2010

HK$°000 HK$'000

FE T FET

Office premises WNREYE 1,168 1,001

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for RE|EHRR AEERE A HEE

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating EHRANBMARAT M Z&ER

leases which fall due as follows: BAEQT

2011 2010

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET T

Within one year —F R 1,160 1,102
In the second to fifth year inclusive E-EFRF

(BREREMF) — 1,160

1,160 2,262

The commitments for operating lease payments represent rentals EEHONRABEARERNAE

payable by the Group for office premises. Leases are negotiated for MERENZHE - BOBEFHFH

an average term of three years. R=4F -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

wRa B R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011
B ZE2011F12A31BILFE

30. Related Party Transactions and Balances 30 BEAETRE RER

Other than the balances with related parties as disclosed in note 24, MR M sE24 R 58 2 BAfE i A T 478
the Group entered into the following transactions with related RN THXR ST R AEEHER
parties: BALTHET:

Name of related party Relationship Nature of transactions 2011 2010

BAEATERE B 17 REMEE HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TET

Connected parties

HERS

GC Capital Investment manager Investment 3,825 3,200

EEZR of the Company management

ARAZREKE fees paid
ENREERE

Linkson Investment
FEHERIEE

Linkson Investment
FEHRIEE

Linkson Investment
FEHRIEE

Greater China Appraisal Limited

RENFERRAT

GC Corporate Services

EEDERY

GC Corporate Services

EE SRR

Fellow subsidiary
of GC Capital
EEERZ R F

Bt & A R

Fellow subsidiary
of GC Capital
EEERZFF

NN

Fellow subsidiary
of GC Capital
EEERZ R F

Cap=SNG|

Fellow subsidiary
of GC Capital
EEERZ R F

f &8 2~ &)

Fellow subsidiary
of GC Capital
EEERZRF

LN NG

Fellow subsidiary
of GC Capital
EEERZ R F

B 8 2 Al

Rental expenses paid

ENEERX

Building and
management
fee paid
ENEFRERE

Rental deposit paid
ENEERS

Valuation fee paid

ENEEER

Corporate services paid

ENEEREE

Purchase of
computers paid

ENEESEg
#E

1,060 1,001
158 154
— 363

— 115
961 880
— 43

BEEREBABERAT 2011 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

wRE B IS R R MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011
B 22011 F12A31HIEFE

30. Related Party Transactions and Balances
(continued)

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

30 BE AR B RESR e

FRN EERTEEREEHEMBKEZ
FEHa T

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FHBIT
Short-term employee benefits EEEBREN 1,482 2,059
Post-employment benefits & A& %& 7 73 75
1,555 2,134
31. Non-Cash Transaction 31. FRER S

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the principal and
interest relating to a loan receivable in the aggregate amount of
HK$5,000,000 was settled by the borrower by transferring its equity
investment in an unlisted entity to the Group. The directors of the
Company considered its carrying amount approximated its fair
value. The unlisted investment was classified by the Group as an
available-for-sale investment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

wRa B R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE2011F12A31HILFE

32. Summarised Financial Information of the
Company

The summarised financial information of the Company is as follows:

32. AR 2B B E R

ARRMZBOMBEERDT

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHETT

ASSETS BE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR Z”E 3,112 3,112
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI S 267,491 304,809
Loan to an associate m—BE A ER 46,557 —
Other receivables E b pE I BR 18 5,283 618
Tax recoverable A U [B] 75 18 — 1,134
Bank balances RITH 10,507 25,764
332,950 335,437

LIABILITIES &8fE&
Amount due to a subsidiary JEN—RIME A F RIE 155 —
Other payables and accruals HtfERNEREREFAE 783 1,857
938 1,857
332,012 333,580

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E

Share capital B% 2N 17,814 17,949
Reserves (note) & (M) 314,198 315,631
332,012 333,580

S BEREEBAERAT 2011 £
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fRE U IR R MR (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2011
B ZE2011F12A31HILFE

32. Summarised Financial Information of the

Com Pany (continued)

32. R AR MO BHER =)

Note: Bt
Reserves: s -
Share Contributed  Accumulated

premium surplus profits Total

BRG=E = EH v 25t

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FET FET

At 1 January 2010 R2010F1 A1H — 125,343 69,080 194,423
Profit for the year K 2F JZ a5 F — — 914 914
Shared issued E#ETRG 122,920 — — 122,920
Cost for issue of shares BITR 17 B AN (2,626) — — (2,626)
At 31 December 2010 R2010F 12 A31H 120,294 125,343 69,994 315,631
Profit for the year I F E i F — — 156 156
Cost for repurchase of shares  §& [0] i% 175k 25 — (1,589) — (1,589)
At 31 December 2011 R2011F12H31H 120,294 123,754 70,150 314,198

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
for the acquisition of GRIH and the consolidated net assets value of
GRIH at the time it was acquired by the Company pursuant to a
group reorganisation in 2001.

Under the Companies Act (1981) of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders, provided
that the Company is, after the payment of dividends out of the
contributed surplus, able to pay its liabilities as they become due; or
the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby not be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities, issued share capital and
reserves.

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
the profit of HK$156,000 (2010: HK$914,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

wRa B R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011
B ZE2011F12A31BILFE

33. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 33. XA TR FTEK B A 7 2

Company

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2011 and 2010 are as follows:

18

KRalEENERFFR20114F %2010

F12A31HZHBOT :

Nominal value of issued
Place of and fully paid share Attributable Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation  capital/paid-in capital equity interest activities
ERTRHARRE S
i) NI RR HEMARLEEE BAREIZEHE EhRAERZ TEXR
2011 2010
Directly held by the
Company:
AR REERS !
Accufocus Investments BVI 100 shares of 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited HERZHES USD1 each REZEK
100 BRCEE1RTTZ
A& 10
Indirectly held by the
Company:
HALEBEESR:
Carson Capital Resources Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited BB of HK$1 each BB
RIEEARBRAF 1R EREEIETZ
Rl
Easy Ace Investments BVI 1 share of 100% Investment holding
Limited RERZEE USD1 each & R
TREREEIETZ
Bt
Ever Honest Investments  BVI 1 share of USD1 each 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited KBRZHS REREEIETZ REER
figfn
GR Investment Holdings  Hong Kong 899,900,000 ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited BE shares of HK$0.1 each BB
ERAIRBR AR 899,900,000 % & % Hl (&

0. 18T Z & BAR

& BEREBBERAT 2011 £ 5§

91



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BHE2011F12A31HIFFEZE

33. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 33. XA T T EM B QA 7 2

Company (continued)

15z

Nominal value of issued
Place of and fully paid share Attributable Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation capital/paid-in capital equity interest activities
ERTRAZKRE
WEBLRARE HAMAYEE BSRAZEE FE 46 IR A 18 15 FEEK
2011 2010
Indirectly held by the
Company: (continued)
HMAXRBERSE: (8)
Glorious Bright Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 30% 100% Money lending
TABRRAF 5B HK$1 each (Note) BeEE
100 BREETETZ (Kfat)
T AR
Prosperity Management Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100% Provision of
Services Limited EFB HK$1 each management
FEEERBARAA 2RBREBIBTZ services
BB REERRS
Rich Concept Investments ~ BVI 1 share of USD1 each 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited EERERES 1REREE1EXTZ REER
& 17
Simply Joy Investments BVI 1 share of USD1 each 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited RERXESE 1REREE1EXTZ REERK
F& 0

Note: 70% of equity interest of the subsidiary was disposed of during the
year and since then, it has become an associate of the Group.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fRE B IS IR R MY R ()
For the year ended 31 December 2011
B 22011 F12A31HIEFE
34. Capital Risk Management 34. EXRE I E
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group AEFBEAEEB  BEEERERAE
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the CERBHUBRNFEREERE A
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and HEBEEtERELRERZ FEIRAR
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged REHR AEEZERBEHBET
from prior year. FEWmES-
The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash AEEZEAEEREReASEER
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, SHEBUEKRKQBHEAES AL
comprising issued share capital and reserves. (BIEEBITHRAREE) -
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a RRRAEBEFFFFRAT—RELR
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the BoEABT 2 —HH EFZE
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. BAKRARSBEERN 2 BBRR - R
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance BEE2HEBEER AEEBEBIK
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new B BT EBLORMDFEHE
share issues and share buy-backs. BEERERE-
35. Financial Instruments 35. T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) AT E%E R
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Financial assets MBEE
Fair value through profit or loss ERAFEFABEER
("FVTPL") (MERAFEFAERER]D
Held-for-trading investments BIEEEKRE 27,329 60,182
Loans and receivables (including cash B L EWEEE
and cash equivalents) (BREBeRFERS2
BE) 87,806 107,099
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE 181,205 174,111
Financial liabilities BiEaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RS AP BR 2
MBaE (97) (5,395)

& BEREBBERAT 2011 £ 5§

93



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BHE2011F12A31HIFFEZE

35. Financial Instruments (ontinued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include loans to
associates, available-for-sale investments, held-for-trading
investments, loans receivable, amounts due from related
companies, cash held by securities brokers, bank balances and
cash, other payables and amount due to an associate. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Certain cash and bank balances of the Group are
denominated in USD which is a foreign currency other
than functional currency, i.e. HK$, of the relevant group
entities. No analysis is presented on HK$ against USD as
HK$ is pegged to USD and the directors believe the
foreign exchange exposure is insignificant.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE2011F12A31HIFFE

35. Financial Instruments (ontinued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s bank balances carry floating-rate of
interests and have exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate. The directors consider the Group’s
exposure is not significant as interest-bearing bank
balances are within short maturity periods.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to interest-free non-current loans to associates
at 31 December 2011 and fixed-rate loans receivable at
31 December 2010. The Group currently does not have
any interest rate hedging policy in relation to fair value
interest rate risk.

The directors monitor the Group’s fair value interest rate
exposure on an ongoing basis and will consider hedging
significant fair value interest rate risk should the need
arise.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale investments and investments held-for-
trading. Management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risks. The Group’'s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity instruments quoted in the Stock
Exchange.

Sensitivity analyses

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
reporting date.

HBITAR

W=}

(b) IHEREERERK
3¢ )
45 B (&)
(i) RERK
REBZRITEBKIRZD
FlR B - MAZEABTT

(iii)

BHXRGMELEZRE
//mchUTJ—wM %%Eﬂﬁ
HREERITERLEH
MBI E - A ik 7K 5 18] Py [
ZEBRIWTEK -

NEEINE ¥ A #2011
F12A318 W B & 2 A
EH e BIERN BB X R R
2010&12H3152liﬂ
TEH&E K2~ T ERE

o NEE B ATHLEE M
E%ﬁ@%ﬁﬂ@@kﬁﬁZﬂ
KR BUR ©

EFRARRARE LA
FENEEY  LHERE
B 8 80 B A2 F (B
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B REMRAHfEE
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wRE B IS R R MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HZE2011F12A31HILFZE
35. Financial Instruments (continued) 35. I T B )

() B35 kR EE B R R I

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
(iii) Price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analyses (continued)
If the prices of the respective equity instruments had
been 10% (2010: 10%) higher/lower:

o pre-tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2011
would decrease/increase by HK$7,104,000 (2010:
HK$12,836,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of held-for-trading investments and
available-for-sale investments which have been
impaired; and

. investment revaluation reserve would increase/
decrease by HK$5,399,000 (2010: HK$8,892,000)
for the Group as a result of the changes in fair
value of other available-for-sale investments.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual debtor at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE2011F12A31HIFFE

35. Financial Instruments (ontinued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group made loan advances to two associates, which are
shown as loans to associates in the consolidated statement
of financial position, amounting to approximately
HK$58,652,000 as at 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$nil) (see
note 19 for details). These loans expose the Group to the
concentration of credit risk. The Group has concentration of
credit risk as 100% of the loans to associates are due from
two (2010: nil) associates. The associates are private
companies and located in Hong Kong and BVI. The principal
activities of the associates are money lending and investment
holding with its investee engaged in sportswear
manufacturing. The directors continuously assess the
recoverability of loans to associates. The directors consider
that the Group’s exposure to credit risk on them is reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the Group’s liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash
flows.

The Group’s financial liabilities are repayable on demand and
interest-free.

35. BT B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE2011F12A31HIFFEZE

35. Financial Instruments (ontinued)

(c) Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and trade in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices;
and

o the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) is
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.
For an option-based derivative, the fair value is
estimated using option pricing model.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

The following table provides an analysis of the financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

BZE2011F12A31HIFFE
35. Financial Instruments (ontinued) 35.

(c) Fair value (continued)

B T B
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- BEo® E=H/ et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT TFHETT FH&TT F&TT
31 December 2011 2011412 A31H
Financial assets at FVTPL & 2 E{E i A
BER2
HKEE
Non-derivative financial BIEEEITLE
assets held-for-trading MR A E 27,329 — — 27,329
Available-for-sale o it E B %
financial assets EE
Listed equity securities TR AES 97,696 — — 97,696
Unlisted equity securities  3F_E 1 IR AN 5 5 — 10,602 — 10,602
Total et 125,025 10,602 — 135,627
31 December 2010 201012 A31H
Financial assets at FVTPL 3% A &3t A
BRRZUH%
EE
Non-derivative financial BIEEBIEITAE
assets held-for-trading 1% B BB E 60,182 — — 60,182
Available-for-sale a {# HE B R
financial assets EE
Listed equity securities R ARES 122,011 — — 122,011
Investment in convertible R AR =4 2
notes — debt portion RE—EBEHD — 16,290 — 16,290
Total 185t 182,193 16,290 — 198,483
There were no transfers between levels during both years. MEFENS SR FEImeEE-
36. Net Asset Value Per Share 36. BIREEFEE

Net asset value per share is computed based on the net assets of
approximately HK$296,954,000 (2010: HK$336,794,000) and
712,546,800 (2010: 717,956,800) issued and fully paid shares as at
the end of the reporting period.

BREEFENERREBRZEEFE
#9296,954,0007%8 7t (20104 : 336,794,000
Bor) RE BT B HUR 2712,546,800
A& A% 17 (20104F = 717,956,800 %) 5+ & -
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Financial Summary

LRy

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE2011F12A31HIEFEZE
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHETT FHET FH&TT TET
Results E¥
Profit/(loss) for REFHN,
the year (E18) 150,239 (53,559) (94,816) (56,586) (41,066)
Assets and liabilities EE R & &
Total assets BERLE 554,358 381,707 254,327 344,601 298,602
Total liabilities BEEE (6,496) (10,445) (823) (7,807) (1,648)
Net assets BEFRE 547,862 371,262 253,504 336,794 296,954
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